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BEME  FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED 3

—hANE —hANEFE —hhtHF
BETT BET T BT T
1999 1998 1997
HKS 000 HKS ’000 HKS 000
B Turnover 12,902,299 5,475,100 5,966,361
BREREERR Profit attributable to shareholders 1,442,839 1,268,428 1,560,122
BE Dividends 290,863 249,177 310,709
R Earnings per share HKSo0.79 HK$0.81 HK$1.03
BREE Dividends per share HKSo.15 HK$0.15 HK$0.20
RRER Shareholders’ funds 14,044,117 9,097,888 8,947,066
DHRERERS Minority interests 3,905,492 4,357,571 4,310,521
BERERR Shareholders’ funds and
DHRERERS minority interests 17,949,609 13,455,459 13,257,587
REERTE Consolidated net borrowings Net Cash 1,488,923 3,395,599
EELk=R Gearing Net Cash 11.1% 25.6%
SREEFE Net assets per share:
BREE book value HKS7.08 HK$5.25 HK$5.76
Bt Notes:
1) BELEGERF 1) Gearing represents the ratio of net
REHIR R has o borrowings to shareholders’ funds and
HRE T B - minority interests.
2) BREFTIHIRRIE 2) Earnings per share have been calculated
1 FlBR LA B 4 B 3 by dividing the profit attributable to
TTER (7,2 IHE-TF 15 2, shareholders by the weighted average
irE number of shares in issue during each

year.
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A REFEESMFR  ANALYSIS OF PROFIT AND
TURNOVER
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CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED

—hhh&E —AANE —hhtE
BETT BET T BT T
1999 1998 1997
HKS 000 HKS ’000 HKS 000
BHEBKZ Profit attributable to
PR R FEAL R shareholders by activity
E -8 Property—Hong Kong 589,005 510,708 796,549
ihE — R EI R ith Property— Chinese mainland 63,342 398,829@ 158,291
Bk Food & beverage 433,317 282,865 255,489
HEBEMHEMIRE Infrastructure & other investments 520,511 242,159 481,506
&5t Subtotal 1,606,175 1,434,561 1,691,835
R Net corporate interest & expenses (163,336) (166,133) (131,713)
Hith& H
FLE ] Total 1,442,839 1,268,428 1,560,122
BIHEHKZ
=0 Turnover by activity
E -8 Property—Hong Kong 3,154,069 1,508,514 3,283,069
ihE — R EI R ith Property— Chinese mainland - 481,255 1,071,864
Bk Food & beverage 8,252,910 2,185,350 1,048,764
HEMEAIRE Infrastructure & other investments 1,495,320 1,299,981 562,664
FLEC] Total 12,902,299 5,475,100 5,966,361
Bfat - Notes:

1) REEGEFERER
RE] -~ BEHER AR
EAf &N al e #
AR D BURFRE

Ko

im

2) 1998 8 Bt
ER R
FlE T AR
BMBHRARE—I
ANEFE= AEEHAR
MRIEH ERAIRE
Frig 25 - B2
270,000,000 7T °

X

1) Profit attributable to the shareholders
includes the results of the Company, its
subsidiaries and its proportionate share
of associates, after eliminating minority

interests.

<

2,

Profit attributable to shareholders

contributed by the Property -Chinese
mainland in 1998 included a profit of
approximately HK$270 million on deemed
disposal of long term investment as a
result of the issuance of new shares by
China Resources Beijing Land Limited in

March 1998.

5
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CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED 7

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

FINAL RESULTS

The Group’s consolidated turnover and profit attributable to shareholders for the year ended 31st
December, 1999 amounted to HK$12,902 million and HK$1,443 million respectively, representing an
increase of 135.7% and 13.8% over that of the previous year. Earnings per share were HK$0.79 compared
with HK$0.81 in 1998.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors have resolved to recommend a final dividend of HK$0.09 per share for 1999 (1998:
HK$0.09) payable on or about 3rd July, 2000 to shareholders whose names appear on the Register of
Members of the Company on 13th June, 2000. Together with the interim dividend of HK$0.06 per share,

the total distribution for 1999 will amount to HK$o0.15 per share.
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CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED 9

PROPERTY — HONG KONG

Despite a rather weak Hong Kong property market in 1999, the sales launch of Villa Esplanada Phase Il
was a great success, providing the Group with a steady stream of profit for the year. The Hong Kong
property development and investment business reported net profit before corporate interest and expenses
of HK$589.0 million, 15.3% above the previous year.

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

The Group is currently involved in one development project in Hong Kong, namely, Villa Esplanada. This is
a residential project which the Group has a 55% attributable interest. The project comprises a 10-block
residential complex with a total floor area of approximately 2.3 million square feet.

The project is divided into three phases. Phase | was pre-sold in 1997 and completed in 1998. Phase Il,
which comprised a floor area of approximately 740,000 square feet, or approximately 830 units, had been
sold in 1999. The construction work of Phase Il was completed on schedule and the units were handed
over to the purchasers in the same year. Thus profit attributable from Phase Il were booked in 1999. The
construction work of Phase Ill, which comprises floor area of approximately 850,000 square feet, or
approximately 1,200 units, is expected to complete on or before the end of 2001. Presale consent of
Phase Il has been obtained from the Legal Advisory and Conveyancing Office of the Lands Department
and sales will be launched shortly when market conditions permit.

PROPERTY INVESTMENT

Following the acquisition of China Resources Retail (Group) Company Limited during 1999, the Group’s
investment property portfolio in Hong Kong increased substantially, dominated by its sizeable retail
spaces of an estimated aggregate floor area of approximately 500,000 sq.ft., which are located in high-
density commercial districts including Causeway Bay, Mongkok, Tsimshatsui and Tsuen Wan where sizeable
retail spaces are limited. The scarcity of sizable retail floor spaces in prime commercial districts offers the
Group with great potential in redevelopment or renovation of these premises into new shopping arcades,
generating a higher rental income to the Company. The Group also owns a portfolio of approximately
700,000 sq.ft., of floor area designated for industrial, office or residential use. These properties achieve a
good occupancy rate during the year under review, generating a stable stream of recurrent income for the
company.

trust -,
worthiness

is the source of high ethical standard and success for our company. Honesty and integrity are at the heart of our business.

We expect our people to maintain high ethical standards both at work and in their personal lives.
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PROPERTY — CHINESE MAINLAND

The Group’s investment in China properties is through its investment in China Resources Beijing Land
Limited (“Beijing Land”). As announced by the Directors of Beijing Land on 10th April, 2000, the
consolidated net profit attributable to shareholders of Beijing Land for the year ended 31st December,
1999 amounted to approximately HK$153.6 million, representing a decrease of 49.5% over the same
period last year.

The decline in turnover and profit was attributable to the delay in the introduction and implementation of
the housing policies in Beijing and senior management at Beijing Land took longer than expected in
adjusting its marketing strategy to cater for the fundamental change in the Beijing property market which
is now dominated by individual buyers rather than institutional buyers. To improve its future prospects,
Beijing Land has diversified its investment risk by investing in a well-known Shenzhen listed property
company --- China Vanke Co., Ltd., and has expanded its senior management team to include new
experienced executives who can react quickly to the rapid changes in the Beijing property market. In view
of the recent actions taken by Beijing Land and its strong financial position, the Directors of the Group
are confident of the long-term prospects of Beijing Land.

ZERAE — IR
Huayuan Building - Beijing

ication

is essential for our success and progress. We take pride in the dedication of our people to
our company and the intense effort they give their jobs.
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CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED 13

FOOD AND BEVERAGE

The Group’s food and beverage business reported net profit before corporate interest and expenses of
HK$433.3 million, an increase of 53.2% over the same period of the previous year.

BEVERAGE DIVISION

The beer and purified water sales volume for 1999 was approximately 800,000 tonnes and 140,000 tonnes
respectively, an increase of 41.8% and 3.7% compared with the same period of the previous year. Sales
revenue for this year increased by 27.1% while net profit of the division grew by 79.0%. The remarkable
growth in earnings was due to strong volume and market share growth and implementation of cost saving
programmes. As part of its strategy of expanding production capacity and market share through internal
expansion and acquisition of new plants, during the year the division had acquired two additional
breweries both located in the North East of China, bringing the division's current production capacity to
approximately 1.2 million tonnes per annum.

GODOWN AND COLD STORAGE

Compared with the same period last year, turnover of this division fell by 20.3%, while net profit

decreased by 38.1%. The occupancy rate of the Group's godown and cold storage operations fell from

84% and 83% in previous year to 79% and 71% respectively for the year under review. The decline in

turnover and net profit of this division was partly attributable to reduction in rental charges for the cold

. storage operation and partly due to fall in occupancy rates as a result of weak consumer demand in Hong
=17

Ng Fung Hong Kong. In view of the recovery in the Hong Kong consumer market, gradual improvement in the
file

==

performance of this division is expected.

NG FUNG HONG LIMITED (“NFH”)

As announced by the directors of NFH on 26th April, 2000, the consolidated turnover and profit
attributable to shareholders of NFH for 1999 amounted to HK$6,664.0 million and HK$549.7 million
respectively, a decrease of 3.7% and an increase of 4.7% respectively over the same period last year. The
Group is currently exploring opportunities of generating synergy between NFH's current businesses and

the Group’s existing food and beverage business.

practicali

is a prerequisite for developing competitive edge and survival. To compete and survive,
we have to do our business in a down-to-earth manner.
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INFRASTRUCTURE AND OTHER INVESTMENTS

The infrastructure and other investments division reported net profit before corporate interest and
expenses of HK$520.5 million, an increase of 114.9% over the same period of the previous year.

HIT INVESTMENTS LIMITED (“HIT”)

HIT, in which the Group has a 10% stake, reported satisfactory performance in 1999. HIT’s Kwaichung
operation experienced throughput growth of 7%, reflecting an encouraging recovery in the volume of
trade in the second half of the year. Construction of the second phase at the Yantian facility was
completed during the year, more than doubling its annual throughput capacity to approximately 2 million
TEUs. Rapid take up of this capacity contributed to throughput growth of over 50%.

REDLAND CONCRETE LIMITED (“REDLAND”)

Redland is principally engaged in the production, distribution and sale of ready-mixed concrete in Hong
Kong. The Directors believe Redland is one of the major ready-mixed concrete producers in Hong Kong
with a market share of approximately 14%. Despite a drop in volume due to weaker demand for ready-
mixed concrete in Hong Kong, Redland reported satisfactory performance in 1999 on the back of
continued cost reduction and improved productivity. In view of the government's continued effort to
increase the supply of public housing and infrastructure spending, the Directors expect that the overall
demand for ready-mixed concrete in Hong Kong will remain steady in the coming year.

THE HKCB BANK HOLDING COMPANY LIMITED (“HKCB HOLDING”)
As announced by the directors of HKCB Holding on 2nd March, 2000, the company achieved an operating

BHEEANRT profit before provisions of HK$343.5 million, representing an increase of 3.6% over the previous year.
HKCB Bank

HKCB Holding's loan provision for 1999 had reduced substantially from HK$796.6 million to HK$291.1
million. The consolidated profit of HKCB Holding for the year ended 31st December, 1999 amounted to
HK$40.4 million, representing a marked improvement over a corresponding loss of HK$646.4 million in
1998. The company’s financial position remains extremely strong, with its consolidated capital adequacy
ratio currently stands at 29.2%. The Company will maintain its cautious posture in terms of credit
exposures and risk management. It will also step up the pace of rationalizing and strengthening its
service and product offerings to position the company to take advantage of the anticipated industry
consolidation.

creativit

leads to reform and growth. Creativity and imagination are always encouraged in our company

because they are crucial to our future expansion.
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CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED

PROSPECTS

The Group’s carefully planned strategy in the last financial year had yielded fruitful return with profit attributable to
shareholders, growing in double digit. Continued prudent approach to financial management has resulted in the
Group currently having a large pool of liquid assets, which will provide it with great flexibility in taking advantage of

expanding its core businesses when opportunities arise.

The Group remains firmly committed to continuing its long-term strategy of expanding its existing core business areas
with a focus in the expansion of its retail and distribution business. With strong financial resources, the Group stands
ready to seize any investment opportunities in the retail and distribution business in the Chinese mainland, which it

believes offer an enormous growth potential.

During the year, as part of its expansion strategy in the retail and distribution business, the Group has committed a
lot of resources, including the engagement of a leading consultancy company, in studying the possibility of engaging
in business to business e-commerce both in Hong Kong and the Chinese mainland. The Group’s current strategy is to
increase the efficiency and competitiveness of its trading and distribution business through the application of Internet
technology. The Group is also responsible for the overall co-ordination of the e-commerce initiatives of the parent
company’s as well as the Group's subsidiaries and putting them into operation under an innovative business model.
The Group will continue to examine the opportunities of leveraging on its parent company’s large trading business
volume, extensive business network and resources to capture the tremendous potential of business to business

e-commerce, particularly in the Chinese mainland.

With a healthy financial position and a dedicated management team, the Directors are confident that the Group will

continue to achieve a satisfactory return for its shareholders.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would also like to take this opportunity to express my sincere thanks to all the
Group's employees for their continuous support and dedicated services.

By Order of the Board
Ning Gaoning Chairman Hong Kong, 26th April, 2000

17
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

MR. GU YONGJIANG

Aged 60, was appointed as the Honorary Chairman of the Group on 17th May, 1999. He is also the
Chairman of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited and China Resources National Corp. Mr. Gu
graduated from the Foreign Trade and Economics Department of the Beijing Institute of Foreign Trade in
China. Prior to his appointment as the Chairman of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited in 1996,
Mr. Gu was a Vice-Minister of the Ministry of Foreign Trade and Economic Cooperation (“MOFTEC”) of The
People’s Republic of China for six years. Mr. Gu has been working in MOFTEC since 1988.

MR. NING GAONING

Aged 41, has been the Managing Director of the Group since 1992 and was appointed the Chairman in
1999. He is also the Vice Chairman and President of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited and
China Resources National Corp. He is also the Chairman of China Resources Beijing Land Limited. Mr.
Ning has a Bachelor of Arts degree in economics from the Shandong University in China and a Master of
Business Administration degree in finance from the University of Pittsburgh in the United States of
America. Mr. Ning is also a Director of Ng Fung Hong Limited, HIT Investments Limited and The HKCB
Bank Holding Company Limited.

MR. HUANG TIEYING

Aged 44, has been an Executive Director since 1994 and was appointed the Managing Director of the
Group in 1999. He has a Master of Economics degree from the People’s University of China in Beijing and
a Master of Business Administration degree in marketing from the University of San Francisco in the
United States of America. He is also an Executive Director of China Resources Beijing Land Limited, Ng
Fung Hong Limited, and the Chairman of Logic International Holdings Limited. With effect from 30th May
2000, Mr Huang has resigned from the Group and his post as Managing Director.

MR. YAN BIAO

Aged 38, has been an Executive Director since 1994 and was appointed Deputy Managing Director in
1999. Mr. Yan is also an Executive Director of China Resources Beijing Land Limited. He is also a Director
of Logic International Holdings Limited and Ng Fung Hong Limited. He has a Bachelor of Law degree from
the Beijing University in China and a Master of Business Administration degree from the University of San
Francisco in the United States of America. With effect from 30th May 2000, Mr Yan has been appointed as
the Managing Director of the Group.

MR. KEUNG CHI WANG, RALPH

Aged 44, has been appointed as Group Finance Director since 1996. Mr. Keung is also an Executive
Director of China Resources Beijing Land Limited and Ng Fung Hong Limited. Mr. Keung graduated from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic and is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and an associate of the Hong Kong Society of Accountants. He has over 20 years of experience in
auditing, accounting and corporate finance. He is also a Director of HIT Investments Limited and The
HKCB Bank Holding Company Limited. With effect from 30th May 2000, Mr Keung has been appointed as
the Deputy Managing Director of the Group.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

MR. LAU PAK SHING

Aged 50, has been an Executive Director since 1997. He is also an Executive Director of China Resources
Beijing Land Limited and Redland Concrete Limited. Mr. Lau graduated from the Hong Kong Baptist
College (now known as Hong Kong Baptist University) and is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and an associate of the Hong Kong Society of Accountants. He is in
charge of the Group’s Hong Kong Property Division and cold storage and warehouse businesses.

MR. CHEN SHULIN

Aged 46, has been an Executive Director since December 1998. He is also the Managing Director of Ng
Fung Hong Limited (“Ng Fung Hong”), and a director of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited. Mr.
Chen is responsible for the overall business and strategic planning of Ng Fung Hong. He obtained a
bachelor degree from Beijing Foreign Languages Institute and a master degree in business administration
from Victoria University, New Zealand. Prior to joining Ng Fung Hong, he worked as a senior official in the
MOFTEC and as a commercial attache in Australia and New Zealand, Deputy General Manager in the
investment and development department of China Resources Holdings and Managing Director of a
subsidiary company of China Resources Holdings in Thailand. He has substantial experience in strategic
planning, business development and investment.

MR. CHAN WAI MO

Aged 44, was appointed an Executive Director on 1st September, 1999. He is also the Managing Director
of China Resources Retail (Group) Co Ltd., responsible for the overall business of CRC Department Store,
Chinese Arts & Crafts, CRC Medichall and CRE/Esprit Joint Venture in China. Mr. Chan was formerly an
Executive Director of a leading international renowned fashion company for 7 years. Mr. Chan has
extensive experience in both retail and licensing operations. He holds a Master of Business
Administration Degree from State University of New York, Binghamton, United States of America and is a
Certified Public Accountant.

DR. XU ZHIMING

Aged 38, was appointed an Executive Director on 13th October, 1999. Dr. Xu was formerly an investment
banker with several leading international banks and has obtained extensive experience in both
investment and commercial banking areas. Prior to his banking career in Hong Kong, Dr. Xu worked for a
leading conglomerate company in China. Dr. Xu has a Bachelor of Science degree in Physics from the
Beijing University in China, a Master of Administration degree in Economics from the China Academy of
Social Sciences and a Ph.D. degree in Economics from the University of Manchester in the United
Kingdom.

MR. WANG QUN

Aged 43, was appointed an Executive Director on 3rd January, 2000. Mr. Wang is also an Executive
Director of CRE Beverage Limited. He is principally responsible for managing the daily operation of the
Group’s brewery business. Mr. Wang has a Bachelor of Finance degree from the People’s University of
China in Beijing. Mr. Wang has previously worked in the China National Economic Committee and held
key management position in a large conglomerate company based in Shenzhen, China.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

NON-EXECUTIVE MR. JIANG WEI

DIRECTORS Aged 37, has been a Director since 1995. Mr. Jiang has a Bachelor’s degree in International Trade and a
Master degree in International Business and Finance, both from the University of International Business
and Economics in Beijing, China. He joined China Resources (Holdings) Co., Ltd. in 1988 and is currently
the General Manager of its Finance Department.

DR. CHAN PO FUN, PETER

Aged 78, has been a Director since 1973. He is a practicing Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong and
a registered dealing director. He has a doctorate in Offshore Petroleum Technology and a doctorate in
Modern Chinese Law and is an honorary fellow member of the society for Underwater Technology.

MR. HOUANG TAI NINH

Aged 46, has been a Director since 1988. He is also a Director of Forcon Investments Limited. Mr. Houang
obtained a Bachelor of Business Studies degree from the Polytechnic of North Staffordshire in the United
Kingdom.

MR. LOO WUN LOONG, JOHN
Aged 59, has been a Director since 1988. He is also the Chairman of Ngo Kee Enterprises Limited.
Mr. Loo is a member of the Institute of Civil Engineers and the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers. He

has over 30 years’ working experience in the construction industry.

SENIOR MR. AN LU
MANAGEMENT Aged 33, is the General Manager of the Group’s Project Division. Mr. Lu has a Bachelor of Commerce
degree from the Royal Melbourne Institute of Technology in Australia and is a qualified Chartered
Accountant. Mr. Lu has accumulated experience in financial planning and corporate restructuring.

MR. ZHONGYI

Aged 36, is the Senior Manager of the Group’s Personal & Administration Department. He has a Bachelor
of Engineering Degree from the China Sichuan University, and a Master of Economics Degree from the
People’s University of China and a Master of Business Administration degree from the University of San
Francisco in the Uniterd States of America.

MS. LIVASIRI, ANKANA
Aged 41, is Head of the Group’s Legal and Secretarial Department. She is a solicitor and holds a Bachelor
Degree in Law from the University of Hong Kong.

MR. LAU KIN SHING, CHARLES

Aged 44, is the General Manager of the Group’s Internal Audit Department. Mr. Lau holds a Bachelor
degree in Accounting and Master degrees in Business Administration and Information System
Management. He is a Canadian Certified General Accountant and U.S. Certified Internal Aduitor. He has

extensive experience in internal auditing, financial management and operations review.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SENIOR MR. FUNG CHE KIN, ERIC
MANAGEMENT Aged 49, is the Deputy General Manager of the Group’s Property Marketing and Management Department.
Mr. Fung graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is a member of Hong Kong Association
of Properties Management Companies, Hong Kong Institute of Real Estate Administration and Chartered
Institute of Housing Hong Kong Branch. Before joining the Group in August, 1999, Mr. Fung worked with
The Hong Kong Housing Authority, MTRC and 3 major Property Developers in Hong Kong and has over 20

years experience in property sales, leasing and management.

MR. KWAN POK MAN, DANIEL

Aged 41, is the Senior Manager of the Group’s Hong Kong Property Division. Mr. Kwan holds a Bachelor’s
degree in Surveying from the University of Greenwich in London and a Post-Graduate Diploma in
Corporate Administration from the City University of Hong Kong. Mr. Kwan has over ten years of
experience in property development and construction. He is a Registered Professional Surveyor, an
Authorized Person and an associate member of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators.

MR. CHAN SIU CHEUNG, HOWARD

Aged 50, is an Executive Director of Redland Concrete Limited (“Redland”). Mr. Chan is principally
responsible for formulating the overall corporate policy and business strategy, as well as managing the
daily operation of Redland. Mr. Chan has over 20 years experience in the ready mixed concrete industry.
Mr Chan was with a reputable British building material company for over 13 years. During this period, he
held several senior executive positions in this company in Hong Kong. Mr. Chan is a member of the
Guandong Provincial Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference.

MR. TSANG WAI MAN

Aged 58, is the General Manager of Sha Tin Cold Storage Company Limited. Mr. Tsang holds the
qualification of corporate management. Before joining the Company, Mr. Tsang held key management
positions in a number of large cold storage companies in Hong Kong. He has over 20 years of
experience in cold storage warehouse management. Mr. Tsang is principally responsible for formulating
business development strategy for the cold storage operation.

MR. ZHANG GUANGLING

Aged 35, is the Managing Director of Pak Sik Enterprises Limited. Mr Zhang obtained a Bachelor of Civil
Engineering degree from Hei Long Jiang Institute of Commerce in China and a Master of Business
Administration degree from the University of San Francisco in the United States of America. He has over

ten years of experience in godown and cold storage management.

MR. GUO JUN
Aged 34, is the General Manager of Beijing Huayuan Property Company Limited. Mr. Guo graduated from
Beijing University in China and has over 12 years experience in property development.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The directors have pleasure in submitting to shareholders their report and

audited financial statements for the year ended 31st December 1999.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activities of the Company are property investment and

investment holding, and the activities of its principal subsidiaries and

B o ARHEIRXB 2 2DEBMEHAEN BERIA

I~

associates are shown on pages 81 to 86. The turnover and contribution to

profit before taxation of the principal activities of the Group are as follows:

EREE B H5¢ AT 7 A
Turnover Profit Before Taxation
—AREFE —RARANFE —ARAFE —RARANF
1999 1998 1999 1998
BET T BT I BT T BET T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
RBOW BY ACTIVITY
HE Property 3,154,069 1,989,769 1,200,184 1,514,383
Rom M8 Food & beverages 8,252,910 2,185,350 937,604 450,938
ERMEMKRE Infrastructure &

other investments 1,495,320 1,299,981 630,825 350,223
12,902,299 5,475,100 2,768,613 2,315,544

REIF B M TR Net corporate interest
& expenses - = (176,801) (197,376)
12,902,299 5,475,100 2,591,812 2,118,168

#7347 BY GEOGRAPHICAL

ANALYSIS
B Hong Kong 9,251,362 3,452,602 2,271,413 1,577,924
B P Chinese Mainland 2,914,968 1,947,451 217,902 517,336
=N Overseas 735,969 75,047 102,497 22,908
12,902,299 5,475,100 2,591,812 2,118,168
SBER GROUP PROFIT

REBBELE—NANETZ_A=T—HLEFEZR
MAMRE A Z IR ERA RN °

The consolidated profit and loss account is set out on page 39 and shows the

Group profit for the year ended 31st December 1999.

B2 DIVIDENDS
BATB R — AIUIE+— A — H [ TR 5 o B
BB EBHEE  EERBERAT RAELES
BB - LB BN S TEEELAS AR
AREFHER - ETEEAHR = B A5 Tl
Mt B M 2 IR

An interim dividend of HK6 cents per share was paid to shareholders on 1st
November 1999 and the directors recommend the declaration of a final
dividend at the rate of HKg cents per share payable on or about 3rd July 2000

to all persons registered as holders of ordinary shares on 13th June 2000.
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FIXED ASSETS
Movements in fixed assets during the year are set out in note 13 to the

financial statements.

PROPERTIES

A schedule of the principal properties of the Group is set out on pages 87 to

91.

SHARE CAPITAL

Movements in share capital during the year are set out in note 24 to the

financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
Details of the Group’s share option scheme are set out in note 24(c) to the

financial statements.

RESERVES
Movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during the year are

set out in note 25 to the financial statements.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
Donations by the Group during the year amounted to HK$168,000 (1998 :
HK$2,000).

DIRECTORS
The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this report

are as follows:

HONORARY CHAIRMAN
Mr. Gu Yongjiang (Appointed as Honorary Chairman

on 15th May 1999)

CHAIRMAN
Mr. Ning Gaoning (Appointed as Chairman

on 15th May 1999)
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MANAGING DIRECTOR
Mr. Huang Tieying

DIRECTORS
Mr. Yan Biao
Mr. Chan Wai Mo

Mr. Chen Shulin

Mr. Keung Chi Wang, Ralph
Mr. Lau Pak Shing

Mr. Wang Qun

Mr. Xu Zhiming

Mr. Jiang Wei

Dr. Chan Po Fun, Peter
Mr. Houang Tai Ninh

Mr. Loo Wun Loong, John

(Appointed as Managing Director
on 15th May 1999)

(Deputy Managing Director)
(Executive Director, appointed on

1st September 1999)
(Executive Director)
(Executive Director)
(Executive Director)
(Executive Director, appointed

on 3rd January 2000)
(Executive Director, appointed

on 13th October 1999)
(Non-executive Director)
(Independent non-executive Director)
(Independent non-executive Director)

(Independent non-executive Director)

In accordance with Article 110 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr.

Ning Gaoning, Mr. Yan Biao, Mr. Lau Pak Shing and Mr. Houang Tai Ninh retire

by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

In accordance with Article 115 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr.

Chan Wai Mo, Mr. Wang Qun and Mr. Xu Zhiming retire and, being eligible,

offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of directors and senior management are set out on pages

18 to 25.
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Name of directors

EeE Ning Gaoning

BHIKE Huang Tieying

=) Yan Biao

PR B Chan Wai Mo

=8 = Keung Chi Wang, Ralph
2 8 A Lau Pak Shing

5 Xu Zhiming

(2) MREMERRABITERARZEETS
Bz BEE

EEHA
Name of directors

PR 1 A Chen Shulin
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

As at 31st December 1999, the following directors had interests in respect of

options granted under the existing share option scheme of the Company and

its associated corporations within the meaning of Securities (Disclosure of

Interests) Ordinance:

(€] Options granted under the Company’s share option scheme:

i d=l=pt
Date of grant

11/05/1996
17/11/1997
11/05/1996
17/11/1997
11/05/1996
17/11/1997
13/10/1999
11/05/1996
17/11/1997
11/05/1996
17/11/1997
13/10/1999

THEE
B
Exercise
Price
HKS
3.856
14.300
3.856
14.300
3.856
14.300
8.480
3.856
14.300
3.856
14.300
8.480

W RERH

Number of share options
R—NARNEF

+=A

RAEE RAEFE
&= EATHE
Granted Exercised
during the during the

year year

300,000 —
— 400,000

— 200,000

1,500,000 —

=+-H
& AR AT fE
Outstanding
at

31.12.1999

3,300,000
1,200,000
2,000,000
1,000,000
1,700,000
1,000,000

300,000

500,000

500,000

1,500,000

(2)  Options granted under the share option scheme of a subsidiary, Ng

Fung Hong Limited:

#ZhAM

Date of grant

10/12/1996
02/01/1997

TEE
B
Exercise
Price
HKS
4.800
5.280

BB RERH

Number of share options

RAEE RAEFE
Es sl EATHE
Granted Exercised
during the during the

year year

R—ANANF
+=A
=+—H

& AR AT R
Outstanding

at

31.12.1999
1,000,000

2,000,000
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(3) WEBELRZEHUEREMFR DA Z B
FEETEIIR 2 BB

EEHA

Name of directors

EmE Ning Gaoning
BHRE Huang Tieying
] Yan Biao
=B8R

Keung Chi Wang, Ralph

br EXATIEESN AFRATAEEAAR &
L)W IR S /NS RS NCIE 5= peg -V
TEMEHEALZH  MSBEFHEMLBR /AR
AN FRZAIFERE AR B SE R EAR AR Z i
MREBLZMER -

EENTETRAEZHESER

R—ANNFE+-H=+—H  BEFELEAE
#4878 7R 2 T 506 00013 AL 1 BIEFEA A A
DAl y14 000l D ¢ BA MBI A PR 55 2 BA R A A

Al 350,000,’1% wetn o
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(3)  Options granted under the share option scheme of an associate, China

Resources Beijing Land Limited:

BRERE

Number of share options
R—hANnE
+=H
TEE RAEFEE RAEFEE = el =|
B Es el ETHE i AR AT 2
Exercise Granted Exercised  Outstanding
=it A Price during the during the at
Date of grant HKS year year 31.12.1999
27/06/1997 4.592 = = 2,500,000
27/06/1997 4.592 = = 2,400,000
27/06/1997 4.592 = = 2,300,000
27/06/1997 4.592 = = 2,000,000

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company, its

subsidiaries, its holding companies or its fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors or their spouses or children under 18
years of age to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or

debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES
As at 31st December 1999, Dr. Chan Po Fun, Peter was personally beneficially
interested in 506,000 shares and held 114,000 shares in the Company as
trustee; and Mr. Lau Pak Shing held personally 350,000 shares in the

Company.

Apart from the foregoing, none of the directors, chief executives or their
associates had any beneficial or non-beneficial interest in the share capital of
the Company or its subsidiaries which is required to be recorded in the
Register of Directors’ Interests pursuant to Section 29 of the Securities
(Disclosure of Interests) Ordinance or as otherwise notified to the Company
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

Companies.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
None of the directors has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the employing company within one

year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance to which the Company, its subsidiaries, its
holding companies or its fellow subsidiaries were a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest, either directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

o
EARF & LOER
RIEEFEK
SATFEAT
1TE B S

EREF MR BNT NIRE

HK$’000

BET T

Fees 728
Basic salaries and allowances 10,681
Provident fund contributions 1,001
Bonus paid 12,544
Benefit from share options exercised 4,246
29,200

The total emoluments of all directors were within the following bands:

fig. 1,000,000

3,000,001 — 3,500,000
4,000,001 — 4,500,000
4,500,001 — 5,000,000
5,000,001 — 5,500,000
6,000,001 — 6,500,000

EXFINEN TR R TEFCEFREHLES
mlso,oooﬁ(_nn}\ﬁ : }‘%?515150,000773) °

BEEAH

No. of directors

Nil — 1,000,000 7
3,000,001 — 3,500,000 2
4,000,001 — 4,500,000 1
4,500,001 — 5,000,000 1
5,000,001 — 5,500,000 1
6,000,001 — 6,500,000 1

The directors’ fees paid to independent non-executive directors included
above amounted to HK$150,000 (1998: HK$150,000).
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HttsBEEABZME OTHER SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S REMUNERATION
PRz EFHMONMEFE B BERREDAK The above analysis of directors’ emoluments includes three individuals whose
RRAZ RS © A& RmUAR SN Z remuneration were among the five highest in the Group. Details of the
Bl &S remuneration paid to the other two highest paid individuals are:
HK$’000
BEBER
EARF e MR Basic salaries and allowances 2,446
NESHK Provident fund contributions 340
SAFFEAT Bonus paid 8,924

11,710

F A 2 5 = AR B FHARE T NIUEE The total emoluments of the other two highest paid individuals were within

the following bands:

AE
No. of persons
5,000,001 — 5,500,000 5,000,001 — 5,500,000 1
6,000,001 — 6,500,000 6,000,001 — 6,500,000 1
FTERRK SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
RIBES RBEER) ROIE T (—) MRZZ The following declaration of interest by shareholders holding 10% or more of
BmERMAE R AANFE+_H=1+—"HH&® the issued share capital of the Company at 31st December 1999 has been
BB A RADEITHAR 10950 A iz 2 R M recorded in the Register of Interests pursuant to Section 16(1) of the

N

Securities (Disclosure of Interests) Ordinance:

HEKEE

No. of ordinary shares

B EE AR R Al

China Resources National Corp.* 1,100,419,002
EHEB)BIRAA (I EHEEER])

China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited (“CRH”)* 1,100,419,002

* EHEEEANFNABIERAF - mHp R RS * CRH is the immediate holding company of the Company. China Resources
NRAAEME BN ERLE - Bk R National Corp. is the holding company of CRH. Therefore both China Resources
e ) BB gt - AR BAEE B AR 1 RIRNEE T ok (05 w4 National Corp. and CRH are deemed to have the same interests in the share
REA AR R F & S o capital of the Company by virtue of section 8 of the SDI Ordinance.

PR EiE SN - B AT EREM AR ARIEES Apart from the foregoing, no person had registered any interest in the issued

(BEED) RAIETER(—) MBZZERER share capital of the Company which is required to be recorded in the Register

Rz ARRAIE BT AR of Interests pursuant to Section 16(1) of the Securities (Disclosure of

Interests) Ordinance.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

1.

On 28th June 1999, Harvest Fair Investment Limited (“Harvest Fair”), a
55% owned subsidiary of the Company, awarded a construction
contract to China Resources Construction Company Limited, a 99.6%

owned subsidiary of CRH.

The contract relates to the main construction work for the third phase
of Villa Esplanada, a residential development project on Tsing Yi Town
Lot 129, Nga Ying Chau, Tsing Yi (the “Project”), which is wholly owned
by Harvest Fair. The contract, which is for a total contract sum of
approximately HK$1,048 million, includes the construction of a 2-storey
car park podium, 4 blocks of 4o0-storey high residential towers, a foot
bridge connecting the Project to the Tsing Yi Station; and soft and hard

landscaping and all associated external works in the promenade.

On 12th August 1999, Innovative Market Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a Share Sale and Purchase
Agreement to acquire 20% remaining interest in Redland Holdings
Limited (“Redland”) from China Resources Metals & Minerals Co., Ltd.,
a wholly owned subsidiary of CRH, for a cash consideration of HK$168
million. The consideration was arrived at after arm’s length negotiation

and on normal commercial terms.

Redland is principally engaged in the production, distribution and sale
of ready-mixed concrete in Hong Kong. Following the completion of the
acquisition on 17th August 1999, Redland become an indirect wholly

owned subsidiary of the Company.

On 8th September 1999, the Company entered into an agreement with
CRH in relation to the acquisition by the Company of CRH’s entire
interest in Fresh Concepts International Limited (“FCI”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of CRH, for a consideration of approximately HK$2,087.3
million. The sole asset of FCl is its entire interest in China Resources
Retail (Group) Company Limited whose principal businesses are the

operation of department stores and property investments in Hong Kong.

Concurrently, CRE Finance (Hong Kong) Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, also entered into an agreement in relation
to the acquisition of CRH’s entire interest, rights and titles in the debt
owed by FCl and its subsidiaries (“Debt”) for a consideration of

approximately HK$632.7 million.
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The aggregate consideration of HK$2,720 million was arrived at after
arm’s length negotiations between the parties thereto after taking into
account of the value of the properties, the future prospects of the retail
business and the principal sum of the Debt. The consideration was
satisfied by a lump sum cash of HK$1,360.61 million and the issue and
allotment of 113,000,000 new shares in the Company at an issue price

of HK$12.03 per share.

On 17th September 1999, Ng Fung Hong Limited (“NFH”), a subsidiary
of the Company, entered into an agreement with CRH to acquire the
remaining 40% equity interest in China Resources Supermarket (Hong
Kong) Limited (“CRS”) and the loan due by CRS to CRH for a total cash
consideration of HK$117.6 million. Upon completion, CRS becomes a
wholly owned subsidiary of NFH. The consideration was arrived at after
arm’s length negotiations between the parties with reference to the
market value of similar companies and business. The transaction was

completed on gth November 1999.

During the year, certain subsidiaries, namely Fresh Concepts
International Limited and its subsidiaries, Ng Fung Hong Limited and
its subsidiaries, Pak Sik Enterprises Limited, Sha Tin Cold Storage
Company Limited and Redland Concrete Limited conducted certain
transactons with related parties. The independent non-executive
directors of the Company have reviewed the transactions and

confirmed that:

@) the transactions have been entered into in the ordinary and

usual course of business of the Group;

(b)  the transactions have been entered into on normal commercial
terms, and on arm’s length basis and, where applicable, in
accordance with the terms of the agreements governing such
transactions or, where there is no such agreement, on terms no
less favourable than terms available to or from independent

third parties;

(©)  the transactions have been entered into on terms that are fair
and reasonable so far as shareholders of the Company are

concerned; and

(d)  the aggregate value of the respective transactions do not
exceed the respective maximum amounts as specified in the

waivers granted by the Stock Exchange.

Details of these transactions are summarised in note 30E to the

financial statements.
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SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES
Particulars regarding the subsidiaries and associates as at 31st December

1999 are set out on pages 81 to 86.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES
Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of

the Company’s listed securities during the year.

YEAR 2000 COMPLIANCE
The Group has stated its definition and approach to Year 2000 problem and

reported the status in our 1998 annual report, 1998 and 1999 interim report.

The Group did not experience any Year 2000 compliance problems and its
operation proceeded smoothly through the millennium changeover period.
The Group will continue to monitor and review its existing operational
procedures throughout this year to ensure that all Year 2000 related issues

have been properly dealt with.

The cost of the Group’s programme was approximately HK$15 million. The
Group charged all maintenance or modification costs as incurred to the profit
and loss account, while the costs of new software and replacement of certain
systems and equipment were capitalised and will be amortised over the

estimated useful life of the asset.

CODE OF BEST PRACTICE

The Company has complied throughout the year with Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange except that
non-executive directors have no set term of office but retire from office on a

rotational basis.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the respective percentage of purchases attributable to the
Group’s five largest suppliers combined and the turnover attributable to the
Group’s five largest customers combined was less than 30% of the Group’s

total value of purchases and total turnover.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the Group’s result and its assets and liabilities for the past five

financial years is set out on page 92.
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Z BB AUDITORS
RE) e SR SEEAITHEREERFTBEFAEHE Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu will retire at the end of the forthcoming
RETREER  TARKREBHLT annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-

appointment.

HKEZERWw On behalf of the Board
TE Ning Gaoning

ESE Chairman

BB —ZEEEFMOHA=-+H

Hong Kong, 26th April 2000
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REPORT OF THE AUDITORS

Certified Public Accountants

Y BRRAGHRN

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 39 to 86 which have been
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Hong

Kong.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
AUDITORS

The Companies Ordinance requires the directors to prepare financial
statements which give a true and fair view. In preparing financial statements
which give a true and fair view it is fundamental that appropriate accounting

policies are selected and applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our audit, on

those statements and to report our opinion to you.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants. An audit includes
examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the
significant estimates and judgments made by the directors in the preparation
of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the Company’s and the Group’s circumstances, consistently

applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and
explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us with
sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement. In forming our opinion, we
also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the
financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis

for our opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31st December 1999 and of the
profit and cash flows of the Group for the year then ended and have been

properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Ordinance.

DELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMATSU

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26th April 2000
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MEBE@mRK CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND
LOSS ACCOUNT
ME—NANFF A=+ —HIFE for the year ended 31st December 1999
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1999 1998
HKS’000 HKS’000
Turnover 3 12,902,299 5,475,100
Less: Cost of sales (9,197,995) (3,193,261)
Gross profit 3,704,304 2,281,839
Other revenue 4 487,473 663,824
Selling and distribution expenses (966,234) (370,325)
General and administrative expenses (734,439) (562,512)
Profit from operations 2,491,104 2,012,826
Finance costs 5 (389,785) (336,060)
Share of results of associates 490,493 441,402
Profit before taxation 6 2,591,812 2,118,168
Taxation 9 (275,706) (289,016)
Profit after taxation 2,316,106 1,829,152
Minority interests (873,267) (560,724)
Profit attributable to shareholders 10 1,442,839 1,268,428
Dividends 11 (290,863) (249,177)
Profit for the year retained 1,151,976 1,019,251
Earnings per share 12
Basic HK$0.79 HK$0.81

Diluted HK$0.79 HK$0.80
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NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Fixed assets

Intangible assets

Interest in associates

Other investments

CURRENT ASSETS
Stocks

Other investments

Trade and other receivables
Tax recoverable
Stakeholder accounts

Cash and bank balances

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables
Short term loans

Taxation

NET CURRENT ASSETS

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

at 31st December 1999

13
14
16

17

18
17
19

20
21

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term liabilities

Deferred taxation

MINORITY INTERESTS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital
Reserves

Ning Gaoning

EFZF Director

22
23

24
25

PR =

—hhhF
BET T

1999
HKS’000

—NANE
BT T
1998
HKS’000

8,000,054 4,227,054
133,734 140,788
7,613,629 7,862,709
14,489 22,565
15,761,906 12,253,116
3,041,765 4,119,933
— 1,940
1,487,895 1,231,930
11,298 1,226
45,346 7,560
6,078,269 4,123,474
10,664,573 9,486,063
(3,561,558)  (2,234,071)
(689,532) (728,136)
(43,234) (412,881)
(4,294,324)  (3,375,088)
6,370,249 6,110,975
22,132,155 18,364,091
(4,163,049) (4,891,821)
(19,497) (16,811)
17,949,609 13,455,459
(3,905,492) (4,357,571
14,044,117 9,097,888
1,983,734 1,732,548
12,060,383 7,365,340
14,044,117 9,097,888
% Chan Po Fun

EF Director
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BALANCE SHEET

at 31st December 1999

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Fixed assets 13
Interest in subsidiaries 15
Interest in associates 16
CURRENT ASSETS

Stocks 18
Trade and other receivables 19

Cash and bank balances

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables 20
Short term loans 21
Taxation
NET CURRENT ASSETS/

(LIABILITIES)

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term liabilities 22

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Share capital 24
Reserves 25
Ning Gaoning BRE

FZF Director

—AANE
BT T

1999
HKS’000

41

—RAANEFE
BET T
1998
HKS’000

53,481 83,412
11,349,214 9,827,247
2,115,002 2,114,981
13,517,697 12,025,640
4,500 4,500
286,326 916,542
1,759,012 470,853
2,049,838 1,391,895
(1,420,359) (985,716)
(155,400) (581,250)
(10,890) (4,296)
(1,586,649) (1,571,262)
463,189 (179,367)
13,980,886 11,846,273
(2,136,750) (3,061,250)
11,844,136 8,785,023
1,983,734 1,732,548
9,860,402 7,052,475
11,844,136 8,785,023

%% Chan Po Fun
EF Director
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RERERNER CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT

ME—NANFF A=+ —HILFE for the year ended 31st December 1999

—hhAhE —AANF
BT T BT T

1999 1998
HKS’000 HKS$’000
BEXRB2ESRA Net cash inflow from operating activities 26A 3,736,240 1,483,969
FE
REBHLKAEREH Returns on investments and servicing of finance
BUREMIRE KRR Dividends received from
other investments 5,228 2,432
BURER S R RIE Dividends received from associates 687,858 229,237
B4 g B, Dividends paid (268,256) (310,635)
[SENN= RG] Dividends paid to minority
D E T M B shareholders of subsidiaries (1,342,447) (16,000)
ENEEMENZHE Interest on finance lease paid (10,228) (3,273)
=R &P, Interest received 385,689 248,581
B 15 HLE Interest paid (415,517) (300,264)
REBBRBAEHN Net cash outflow from returns on investments
ZBRERHFE and servicing of finance (957,673) (149,922)
I8 Taxation
B & B SR Hong Kong profits tax paid (570,633) (92,912)
BT BRI AT S Chinese Mainland income tax paid (23,776) (25,018)
B HNFIS B Overseas profits tax paid (218) —
BARIE Tax paid (594,627) (117,930)
REZD Investing activities
BABEEE Purchase of fixed assets (439,681) (552,459)
ENEERAK Cost of intangible assets incurred (445) (17,620)
H 5 BT e R A Disposal of subsidiaries 26B (2,378) (774,129)
Uiz T Bt /8 R A Acquisition of subsidiaries
G BRI BB FT 1% 2 (net of cash and cash
RekEE2EE) equivalents acquired) 26C (785,645) 1,262,734
BB E R RIS Purchase of additional interests in subsidiaries (247,289) -
UghE M BT Purchase of and advance to associates (48,445) (555,876)
5 8 1
BARMKRE Purchase of other investments - (12,038)
EEMIRE Proceeds from disposal of
FiTis 718 other investments 10,605 -
HERBEEE Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 44,210 2,729
REZBZHE Net cash outflow from investing activities (1,469,068) (646,659)

R R



A E R 2 WERAFE

RITIFRERIFER
JNE A 2 B2
EHRITER
Z B A

BEMAENRZ
N

DB R ER

ALE 2 HERAFE

BekRESEEEM
EXFEIHE
R—H—HZ
REFREEHE
BRt=ZH=Z+—Bz2
REkREEH
HekHeEE
KRR AT
HE RRITET
RITERERES
NEAEISZ
FEHISRITE K
Z B
HIRITE K
M ST

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT #&Bla&ifizs€ 43

—ARARNE —RANF
BT T BET T
1999 1998
HKS’000 HKS’000
Net cash inflow before financing 714,872 569,458
Financing 26D
Issue of ordinary share capital less expenses 1,865,636 2,590
Proceeds from bank and other borrowings 1,115,587 2,797,901
Repayment of loans (1,884,524) (1,726,258)
Bank deposits pledged for short term bank loans
with maturity of 6 months (34,158) —
Capital element of finance lease rental payments (25,295) —
Minority interests 167,182 307,948
Net cash inflow from financing 1,204,428 1,382,181
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,919,300 1,951,639
Effect of foreign exchange rate adjustments - 8,364
Cash and cash equivalents at 1st January 4,121,636 2,161,633
Cash and cash equivalents at 31st December 6,040,936 4,121,636
Analysis of the balances of cash
and cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances 6,078,269 4,123,474
Bank deposits pledged for short term bank loans
with maturity of 6 months (34,158) —
Short term bank loans & overdrafts (3,175) (1,838)
6,040,936 4,121,636
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

RECOGNISED GAINSAND LOSSES

ME—NANFF A=+ —HILFE for the year ended 31st December 1999

—hhhF
BET T

1999
HKS’000

Changes on revaluation of properties

—NANE
BT T
1998
HKS’000

— deficit arising in year (108,396) (199,456)
— share of deficit of associates (11,012) (16,722)
— disposal of subsidiaries — (8,307)

Currency translation differences
— amount arising in year 1,451 18,775
— disposal of subsidiaries 6) (564)

Net losses not recognised in the
consolidated profit and loss account (117,963) (206,274)
Net profit for the year 1,442,839 1,268,428
Total recognised gains 1,324,876 1,062,154
Net goodwill on acquisition 676,672 (1,832,329)
Goodwill release due to disposal of subsidiaries and associates 10,518 (1,315)
2,012,066 (771,490)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

GENERAL

The Company is a public listed company incorporated in Hong Kong
and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange™). The directors regard the ultimate holding
company to be China Resources National Corp., a company established
in Chinese Mainland.

The principal activities of the Company are property investment and
investment holding, and the activities of its principal subsidiaries and
associates are shown on pages 81 to 86.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Save as specified in the following, the financial statements have been

prepared under the historical cost convention.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable Hong Kong Statements of Standard Accounting Practice
(“SSAPs”). A Summary of principal accounting policies adopted by the
Group is set below.

A Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group include the
financial statements for the year ended 31st December 1999 of
the Company and of all its direct and indirect subsidiaries and
also incorporate the Group’s interests in associates on the basis
set out in note 2C below. The results of subsidiaries and
associates acquired or disposed of during the year are included
as from their effective dates of acquisition to 31st December
1999 or up to the dates of disposal as the case may be. Goodwill
arising on consolidation of subsidiaries is eliminated against

reserves in the year in which it arises.

B Investment in subsidiaries

A subsidiary is a company in which the Company, directly or
indirectly, holds more than half of the issued share capital or
controls more than half of the voting power, or where the
Company controls the composition of its board of directors. In
the Company’s balance sheet, investments in subsidiaries are
carried at cost less provision for permanent diminution in value

where appropriate.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

C

Associates

An associate is an enterprise, not being a subsidiary, in which
the Group has a substantial long-term interest and over which
the Group is in a position to exercise significant influence.
Results of the associates are incorporated in the financial
statements to the extent of the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition results calculated from their financial statements
made up to 31st December 1999. In the consolidated balance
sheet, investments in associates represent the Group’s share of
net assets and the premium paid on the acquisition of the
interests in the associates less provision for permanent
diminution in value. In the Company’s balance sheet,
investments in associates are stated at cost less provision for

permanent diminution in value.

Other investments

Other investments are investments in debt and equity securities,
except those held either solely for the purpose of recovering
advances or, as investments in subsidiaries, associates or joint

ventures.

Other investments which are debt securities held-to-maturity are
stated at amortised cost in the balance sheet. Amortised cost is
cost plus or minus the cumulative amortisation of the difference

between the purchase price and the maturity amount.

Other investments which are held for an identified long-term
purpose are measured at cost as reduced by any impairment

loss that is other than temporary.

Other investments which are neither debt securities held-to-
maturity nor securities held for an identified long-term purpose
are measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses

included in the profit and loss account.
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FESTEEX @ 2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
X EBEEEE E Fixed assets
() REME (@ Investment properties
BAMRDERTREEE Investment properties are interests in land and buildings

SERRIE N R & E E M
B REFESD  E
Al & WA TR 24 R Al
EEEE - &REWE/IN
BEFZERXRHEMRZIA
B E S Ak o

BERIBR=-_FHABY
HEMAET R MEH
Fm o BFRAIBHAREHR
FERERIITBARET
A REMEBELE
BIBIFDREEGHEZ
ZEEE o Mt ARKEZ
MBNEAREEERE
MEBESZEAM  RITRE
<BEEBmRPNE - M
FBANE RIBRE KRB MR -
BE®R LIRS G ARRE
Al F& 5% 2 0 BR 2 B Al B0 (0
RUEIEAHPEABER
NeEFELEEBREME
B AR CEMARRRE
ABmENA °

KRR B DAK JE R F
HER _tFHOTHE
ZEEBEDREITELRLE

in respect of which construction work has been completed
and which are held for their investment potential, any
rental income being negotiated at arm’s length. Such
properties are stated at their open market value on the

basis of an annual professional valuation.

The valuations are carried out at intervals of not more than
three years by independent valuers and in each of the
intervening years, valuations are undertaken by
professionally qualified executives of the Group. Changes
in the value of investment properties are dealt with as
movements in the property valuation reserve. If the total of
this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit on a portfolio
basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to the profit and
loss account. Where a deficit has previously been charged
to the profit and loss account and a revaluation surplus
subsequently arises, this surplus is credited to the profit
and loss account to the extent of the deficit previously
charged. Upon sale of a revalued investment property, the
revaluation surplus is transferred to the profit and loss

account.

No depreciation is provided on investment properties
which are held on leases with an unexpired term of more

than 20 years.
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Land

B=x
Buildings
HEYMFEE

Leasehold improvements

&

Vessels

RERE

Cold storage facilities
AR B

Plant and machinery

R M E A R B
Furniture and equipment
FTE

Motor vehicles

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

E Fixed assets (continued)

(b)

©

Construction in progress

Properties, plant and equipment in the course of
construction for production, rent or administrative
purposes or for purposes not yet determined, are carried
at cost. Cost includes all construction expenditure,
professional fees, borrowing costs capitalised and other
relevant expenses directly attributable to such projects.

No provision for depreciation is made on construction in
progress until such time when construction work is
complete and the costs of construction are transferred to
the respective type of fixed assets.

Other fixed assets

Fixed assets other than investment properties and
construction in progress are stated at cost less
depreciation.

Depreciation of other fixed assets is provided to write off
the cost of the assets using the straight line method over
their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives are
as follows:

1% 76 R HH & R 8

Over the unexpired term of lease
20E507F

20 to 50 years

3210 FRIRFIREEFHM A P &RER
3 to 10 years or over the unexpired term of
lease, whichever is shorter

5% 15

5 to 15 years

10%F

10 years

¥ 0%

5 to 20 years

3210

3 to 10 years

32 g%F

3 to 8 years
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

F

Leased assets

Assets acquired pursuant to finance leases and hire purchase
contracts that transfer to the Group substantially all the rewards
and risks of ownership are accounted for as if purchased
whereby an amount equivalent to cost is recorded as fixed
assets and as a long term liability. Depreciation is provided in
accordance with the Group’s depreciation policy. Payments to
the lessor are treated as consisting of capital and interest
elements. The interest element is charged to profit and loss
account. All other leases are accounted for as operating leases
and the rental payable and receivable under operating leases
are accounted for on a straight line basis over the periods of the

respective leases.
Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost and are amortised on the

straight line method over the following periods :

30°F
30 years
5215

5 to 15 years
Stock of properties

Stock of properties includes properties under development for

sale and properties held for sale.

Properties under development comprise the land cost together
with development expenditure, which includes construction
costs, capitalised interest and ancillary borrowing costs, plus
attributable profits taken to date, less progress payments

received and foreseeable losses.

Profit on pre-sale of properties under development is recognised
over the course of the development. On this basis, profit
recognised on properties pre-sold during an accounting period is
calculated by reference to the proportion of development costs
incurred up to the accounting date to total estimated
development costs to completion, with due allowance for

contingencies.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

H

Stock of properties (continued)

Property held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value is determined by reference
to management estimates based on prevailing market

conditions.

Other stocks

Other stocks which comprise raw materials, consumables and
packing materials, work-in-progress and finished goods are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined on the weighted average method. Cost of work-in-
progress and finished goods comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of production overheads.
Net realisable value is determined as the estimated net selling
price less all further costs of production and the related costs of

marketing, selling and distribution.

Recognition of revenue

Income from pre-sale of properties under development prior to
completion of the development is recognised over the period
from execution of the respective sale and purchase agreements
to the completion of development by reference to the proportion
of development costs incurred up to the accounting date to total

estimated development costs to completion.

Other sales are recognised upon delivery of goods and provision
of services; and interest income is recognised in the profit and

loss account as it accrues.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are accounted for on the accrual basis and
charged to the profit and loss account in the year incurred,
except for costs related to funding of fixed assets and properties
under development which are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset up to the date when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are

completed.

Fees paid for the arrangement of syndicated loan facilities and
debt securities are deferred and amortised on a straight line

basis over the period of the loans.
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FTRENBUR @) 2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

B GEEHE L Deferred taxation
B IETIBIE L5 H 2 m A Deferred taxation is accounted for using the liability method in
B3 BT B ¥R S PR R U A 1 2 B respect of timing differences between profit as computed for
Z LBEFEXREE  HEERERIKR taxation purposes and profit as stated in the financial
R IAHATE A] H A% 2R AN SR R U 2 statements to the extent that a liability or asset is expected to
BEXEE - be payable or receivable in the foreseeable future.

" HE M Foreign exchange
BILAINZ B R 5 J 51 B R Transactions in currencies other than Hong Kong dollars are
EHZEXRRTE - LEBEEE converted at the rates of exchange ruling on the transaction
BZEHEEAEMABANRESR dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in such
HZEXRFE - EHEBIIIA currencies are translated at the rates of exchange ruling on the
EEAERMNZEIER balance sheet date. Exchange differences are included in the

determination of operating profit.

B 88 72 7l MBS 8 7 m) BA TS JT A S The financial statements of subsidiaries and associates reported
EMBERIMBERS DEER in currencies other than Hong Kong dollars are translated into
ZEXFTERBE - EHERE) Hong Kong dollars at the rates of exchange ruling on the balance
ERREIEHERE - sheet date. Exchange differences are dealt with as movements in
reserves.
E X 3 TURNOVER

—AAhE —ARNF
BT T BT T

1999 1998
HKS’000 HKS’000
EXRERANRILEMEBER Turnover represents sales by the
RISTHNEEFP Z#HE - 1 Company and its subsidiaries to
BIERE MIHE ZIA outside customers and comprises

revenue from

HEW Sales of properties 3,097,764 1,942,796
H & E S 5 Sales of other goods 9,314,940 3,245,787
Ha WA Rental income 50,560 45,742
R AR S M E A Rendering of services & others 439,035 240,775

12,902,299 5,475,100
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Py H b = 4  OTHER REVENUE

—ARE —AANEF
BT T BT T

1999 1998
HKS’000 HKS’000

HE A im BB R Dividend from other investments
= Listed — 307
FEE™ Unlisted 5,228 2,125
B A Interest income 398,944 315,307
ERBUWA Management fee income 16,445 1,915
H & B ) B # Profit from disposal of a subsidiary 1,992 -
WAL EHERNE & Profit on deemed disposal of a subsidiary — 270,015
H Others 64,864 74,155
487,473 663,824

kil 2R DN 5 FINANCE COSTS

—hhAhE —AANF
BT T BT T

1999 1998

HKS’000 HKS$’000

R E L FE Interest on finance leases 10,228 3,273
WITEF L EAMEFHE Interest on bank loans and other loans

FERAFRAEREE Wholly repayable within five years 350,483 347,331

EFROAFATHER Not wholly repayable within five years 8,093 13,087

B S Financing charges 22,562 12,512

391,366 376,203

W A ARFRIA Less: Amounts capitalised (1,581) (40,143)

389,785 336,060
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FR A5 A1 3% Al 6  PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

—RANnFE —AANEFE

BB RS R E HER -

% B N &
B IR
BIEEAERHE
nE
—BEEE
—RBEHOBECEE
EREREOEH

WEFA
HEWARLE

W B RS
HEWAFR

FE 465 Bt 8 B3 ) R A 18

iaiis)
EET

EEZWE

RRARIEFZMEN I

E A B &

Profit before taxation has been arrived at

after charging:

Auditors’ remuneration
Staff costs
Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation
— Owned assets
— Assets held under finance lease

Operating leases charges

And after crediting:

Gross rental income

Less: Related out-goings

Net rental income

Share of profits less losses of associates

Listed
Unlisted

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments of the directors of
the Company are as follows:
Fees

Other emoluments

BET T

1999
HKS’000

BET T
1998
HKS’000

6,195 3,502
763,875 633,128
8,331 9,340
300,158 167,986
12,266 9,130
171,520 67,256
50,560 45,742
(6,948) (3,619)
43,612 42,123
30,927 228,950
459,566 212,452

—AANE
W T T

1999
HKS’000

—ARANE
BT T

1998
HKS’000

728 480
28,472 13,665
29,200 14,145
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AN BREQEE 8  STAFF PROVIDENT FUND

—RAREFE —AANF
BET T BET T

1999 1998
HKS’000 HKS’000
AEREHBRERERZ Group contribution to staff provident fund 17,055 6,933
¢ k)
D H 2R R Forfeited contributions utilised (1,488) (169)
15,567 6,764
i R B) H 2R IR Un-utilised forfeited contributions 3,230 -
REEREHEEZRRESHAZER The Group operates a defined contribution retirement scheme which is
RFCRIRETE] - RETEIZEE AR available to all Hong Kong employees. The assets of the scheme are held
BEEIHER YHEBEYEERZES separately from those of the Group in an independently administered fund.
A - HRBNBRBREERTEZF The amount of contributions is based on a specified percentage of the basic
ERMGLEHE MR TEEZARE salary of employees and any forfeited contributions in respect of unvested
A Z E AR U KR H AR AE AR SR 2 benefits of staff leavers are used to reduce the Group’s contributions.
BERK o
by IR 9  TAXATION

—AAREFE —AANF
BET T BET T

1999 1998
HKS’000 HKS’000
FEEHRE Current taxation
B Hong Kong
FiN/NTIN Y )= NT Company and subsidiaries 181,355 169,735
A R/NE Associates 44,492 64,086
R E At Chinese Mainland
B 2 A Subsidiaries 27,767 34,354
Bt 4 2 7 Associates 15,768 21,610
S0 Overseas
i J2 2~ 7 Subsidiaries 5,350 141
274,732 289,926
IE FE TR 18 Deferred taxation
BB Hong Kong
EINYNYCT 30 - I/N] Company and subsidiaries 974 31
AN Associates - 55
R P it Chinese Mainland
Ft 25 22 ) Subsidiaries - (996)

275,706 289,016
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BB @) 9 TAXATION (continued)
BB FIEBIRIE AT E 2 (5t IR RH
538 IR 2 g0, (— FLILINE ¢ q60) 1B
& o P B P BT 15 B TR JROB 0 AR R
8 7 A B P 37 B A D1 9 i R PR R
BB E B HBIRE FIARR
EHE R

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16% (1998: 16%) on the
estimated assessable profits for the year. Chinese Mainland income tax
has been provided for based on the estimated assessable profits in
accordance with the relevant tax laws applicable to the Group in the
Chinese Mainland. Overseas taxation is calculated at the rates

prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

NEEZWAREE NIHE ZETEFRIAE
E/(BfE) :

Deferred taxation assets/(liabilities) for the year have not been

provided in respect of the following:

—AANE
BT T

—NANE
BT T

1999 1998

HKS’000 HKS’000

EEXENERERPIE Arising from accelerated

depreciation allowances (1,940) 682
EfE B MART#ZHIARKE Arising from unrelieved tax losses 42,785 2,325
EEXgERE Arising from other timing differences 380 (320)
R BR & A % R 10 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

FTARRAIRE ZKEEERNAEE
153,320,0007C ( — L AL\ B S
444,683,0007C) °

@S

Of the profit attributable to shareholders, HK$153,320,000 (1998:
HK$444,683,000) is dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company.

11 DIVIDENDS

—AANE
W T T

~AANE
BT

1999 1998

HKS’000 HKS’000

EFER NIIEH ik
FZEINKRHME
[EEZE:353
171 BB i 4

BLR 3 R BB 5 O 1 L
(—ANNEFE : BHEIL)
R T R BB B S
(—RIJ\E B i)

Additional final dividend paid for
the previous year as a result of:
conversion of bonds — 15

exercise of share options 84 25

Interim dividend paid of HK$0.06

(1998: HK$0.06) per share 112,243 93,208

Proposed final dividend of HK$0.09
(1998: HK$0.09) per share 178,536 155,929
290,863 249,177
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+= SRER 12 EARNINGS PER SHARE

—RAREFE —AANF
BET T BET T

1999 1998
HKS’000 HKS’000
FRERRBBERN)IE The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings
NPIBRIRETE ¢ per share is based on the following data:
27 Earnings
MIAG B S RERETZ Net profit attributable to shareholders for
R AR T F the purposes of calculating
basic earnings per share 1,442,839 1,268,428
B — e B S s A AR Effect due to dilutive potential ordinary shares
AREEmE e of a subsidiary (2,236) (2,375)
MIAG B S RE R T 2 Net profit attributable to shareholders for
M5 B AR i the purposes of calculating diluted
earnings per share 1,440,603 1,266,053
I 15 B H Number of shares
MU ESRER&NZ Weighted average number of ordinary shares
I 0 AE - 19 B for the purposes of calculating
basic earnings per share 1,817,388,934 1,575,192,665
HFHENAIREE T E Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:
— BE — Share options 8,866,148 7,951,529
— AlERIE S — Convertible bonds = 11,929
HIUAGTESREBEAF 2

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

B BN N3 for the purposes of calculating diluted

earnings per share 1,826,255,082  1,583,156,123
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FIXED ASSETS

The Group

Cost or valuation

At 1st January 1999

Relating to subsidiaries
acquired

Additions

Disposals

Transfers

Exchange difference

Revaluation deficit

At 315t December 1999

Accumulated depreciation

At 1st January 1999

Relating to subsidiaries
acquired

Charge for the year

Written back on disposals

Exchange difference

At 315t December 1999

Net book values

At 315t December 1999

At 315t December 1998

Representing assets stated:

At cost
At 1999 professional

valuation

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REW*E
Investment

properties
BET T
HKS’000

T REF

Land and
buildings
BETT
HKS$’000

HWEREE
Plant and

machinery
BET T
HKS’000

HthEE
Other

assets
BETT
HKS$’000

M R 57

Fk
Total
BT T
HKS$’000

467,700 2,058,437 1,349,626 1,270,024 5,145,787
1,835,150 1,959,448 162,689 163,469 4,120,756
- 32,129 38,976 394,095 465,200

- (29,423) (26,150) (108,292) (163,865)
11,611 81,948 198,864 (292,423) —

— 1,102 — 3,024 4,126
(108,396) - - - (108,396)
2,206,065 4,103,641 1,724,005 1,429,897 9,463,608
- 210,872 374:474 333,387 918,733

- 156,123 31,367 129,349 316,839

- 65,658 104,352 142,414 312,424

- (6,121) (11,446) (68,026) (85,593)

- 125 - 1,026 1,151

- 426,657 498,747 538,150 1,463,554
2,206,065 3,676,984 1,225,258 891,747 8,000,054
467,700 1,847,565 975,152 936,637 4,227,054
- 4,103,641 1,724,005 1,429,897 7,257,543
2,206,065 - - - 2,206,065
2,206,065 4,103,641 1,724,005 1,429,897 9,463,608
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FlXED ASS ETS (continued)

The Company

Cost or valuation

At 1st January 1999

Additions
Disposals

Revaluation deficit

At 31st December 1999

Accumulated depreciation

At 1st January 1999

Charge for the year

Written back on disposals

At 315t December 1999

Net book values

At 315t December 1999

At 315t December 1998

Representing assets stated:
At cost

At 1999 professional valuation

REWE THREF

Investment

properties
BE T IT
HKS’000

Land and
buildings
BT T

HKS’000

Hih&EE
Other

assets
BT T
HKS’000

FLRC
Total

LR

HKS’000

74,000 1,823 15,958 91,781
- - 1,896 1,896
- - (110) (110)
(28,370) - - (28,370)
45,630 1,823 17,744 65,197
— 122 8,247 8,369
- 40 3,347 3,387
- - (40) (40)
- 162 11,554 11,716
45,630 1,661 6,190 53,481
74,000 1,701 7,711 83,412
- 1,823 17,744 19,567
45,630 - - 45,630
45,630 1,823 17,744 65,197
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EEE @ 13 FIXED ASSETS (continued)

—RANEFE —AANEF

BT T BT T

1999 1998
HKS’000 HKS’000
BEEEEZEGEBFERE Net book value of fixed assets comprises :
xE The Group
'E Hong Kong
BRERERNFEIME Properties held on long lease 2,419,955 649,174
RPN RZME Properties held on medium-term lease 2,568,093 888,265
R A Chinese Mainland
BEREROFAEZDE Properties held on long lease 20,646 18,772
BERHROFBEZIOE Properties held on medium-term lease 723,294 594,206
RERRNFTEZUER Properties held on short lease 77,045 87,867
= Overseas
REHRRNFTEIME Properties held on short lease 74,016 76,981
5,883,049 2,315,265
ZAN/NYC]| The Company
B Hong Kong
BERHROFBEZIOE Properties held on medium-term lease 45,630 74,000
A Chinese Mainland
RPN RZME Properties held on medium-term lease 1,661 1,701
47,291 75,701
() REVRCEARAIRRNEE (@  The investment properties have been revalued as at 31st December
BRI RTA BRI BR S 3UE & 1999 by Mr. Kwan Pok Man, Daniel, Chartered Surveyor, the senior

R—NANANFE+ZH=+—HE
AT EEEER

property development manager of the Company on an open market

value basis.
(L) ARERBEVOFTRZBESR (b)  The net book value of fixed assets held under finance leases of the
ER-NANFET_A=1T—H Group at 31st December 1999 amounted to approximately
< 3B H) 3 78 1 54,926,000 HK$54,926,000 (1998: HK$67,633,000).
TT(—AINE & m67’633’000
JC) ©
(M) ARl ERETRBEME -4 © Other fixed assets mainly comprise vessels, leasehold improvements,

BEUREE - LRRE - BER cold storage facilities, furniture and equipment, motor vehicles and
BfE - AEkERLE - construction in progress.
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14

15

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

At 1st January 1999
Additions
Amortisation for the year

Relating to subsidiaries acquired

At 31st December 1999

INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES

The Company
Unlisted shares, at cost

Amounts due from subsidiaries

BiE R RS
Brand Development e
names costs Total
BT T BT T BEWTIT
HKS’000 HKS’000  HKS’000
122,819 17,969 140,788
49 396 445
(4,935) (3,396) (8,331)
741 91 832
118,674 15,060 133,734

—ANE
BT T
1999
HKS’000

—ANE
BT T

1998
HKS’000

6,819,399 4,404,011
4,529,815 5,423,236
11,349,214 9,827,247

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31st December 1999 are set out on

pages 81 to 86.
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REEE QB 2 Esm 16 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES
—RARANFE —RAANEF
BT I BT T
1999 1998
HKS’000 HKS’000
= The Group
=) Listed
FEIRREEINZ Share of net assets,
BEEFE other than goodwill 1,823,037 1,806,959
WEEZ HREFRE Net premium on acquisition 17,932 18,695
1,840,969 1,825,654
JFEET Unlisted
BB EIINZ Share of net assets,
BEESFE other than goodwill 2,251,340 2,515,845
iRz mEFE Net premium on acquisition 3,233,358 3,233,248
5,484,698 5,749,093
FE U Bt i 2 A FRIA Amounts due from associates 287,962 287,962
5,772,660 6,037,055
7,613,629 7,862,709
LB ERRHE Market value of listed associates 830,288 1,512,911
VN The Company
Lkt o RAE Listed shares, at cost 210,898 210,877
I LT - BRKARE Unlisted shares, at cost 1,882,337 1,882,337
& W = 8 R FRIR Amounts due from associates 21,767 21,767
2,115,002 2,114,981
Wik mE Market value of listed shares 173,558 157,780
R—ANNF+ A=+ —HZELHE Particulars of the principal associates at 31st December 1999 are set out on

ERAFBHENEgGAEFEgA ° pages 81 to 86.
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Tt H#rE 17 OTHER INVESTMENTS

7 5 8l N
The Group The Company
—NLANF — LA NF —NANE —NANF
BET T BT T BET T BET T
1999 1998 1999 1998
HKS’000 HKS’000 HKS’000 HKS$’000
ERBIE Non-current investments
HREIFLM Unlisted shares in
Weta - ARAE Hong Kong, at cost 9,438 15,702 - -
FREAHIFET Unlisted shares in Chinese
W12 - BRANE Mainland, at cost 5,051 6,863 - -
14,489 22,565 - -
mBIRE Current investments
A Unlisted shares in
FE_Em AR Chinese Mainland — 1,504 - -
Hh [ P 3 B R Treasury bills in
Chinese Mainland = 436 = —
— 1,940 - -
+N FE 18 STOCKS

REHE AT
The Group The Company
—RAANEF —RAANEF —RAARE —ARANEF
BT T BT T BT T BET T
1999 1998 1999 1998
HKS’000 HKS’000 HKS’000 HKS$’000
MEFE Stock of properties
FEERPYR Properties under
development for sale 1,772,523 3,386,726 — -
TFEIXR Properties held for sale 122,816 4,500 4,500 4,500
1,895,339 3,391,226 4,500 4,500
HEibfzE Other stocks
JR #t Raw materials 178,674 149,788 - -
2 R LB R Consumables and packing
materials 124,573 148,762 = -
T8 m Work-in-progress 90,170 48,164 - -
BLAK o Finished goods 753,009 381,993 - -
1,146,426 728,707 - -

3,041,765 4,119,933 4,500 4,500
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EZ K 19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
H b FE W KR

MH AW 63

A E /N
The Group The Company
—RAANEFE —hRN\F —RARANE —RAANEFE
BEET T BT T BT T BT T
1999 1998 1999 1998
HKS’000 HKS’000 HKS’000 HKS’000
TR~ & M Debtors, deposits
TR R and prepayments 1,390,730 1,163,665 31,549 23,448
FE U B 88 N TSR IR Amounts due from
subsidiaries = - 253,683 892,303
FE U B 2 23 B FRIR Amounts due from associates 97,165 68,265 1,094 791
1,487,895 1,231,930 286,326 916,542
j=+-] % &
= 20 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

H b B FR IR

IS £ = /N
The Group The Company

—RAANEFE —hRN\F —RARANE —RAANEFE

BEET T BT T BT T BET T

1999 1998 1999 1998

HKS’000 HKS’000 HKS’000 HKS’000

FEAT B R M B R B Creditors and accruals 2,635,918 1,974,152 3,530 59,462
JTEFJLT%H&LQEJ I8 Amount due to a

holding Company 744,206 99,769 680,000 —

FEAS B 8 22 R FROR Amounts due to subsidiaries — — 558,293 769,934

FEAH B &2 2 R FRIR Amounts due to associates 2,898 4,221 — 391

3 R Proposed dividend 178,536 155,929 178,536 155,929

3,561,558 2,234,071 1,420,359 985,716
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—t— BHEXK
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EARFIRITE R
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HHRITER
M ST
&
frg i

SHORT TERM LOANS

Current portion of long term
liabilities comprises
Unsecured bank loans
Obligations under

finance leases

Short term bank loans and
overdrafts
Secured

Unsecured

rE

The Group
—NANEF — INE

BT T

BEET T
1999 1998

HKS’000 HKS’000

LN

BET T

1999
HKS’000

The Company
NREF

—ARNE
BEET T
1998
HKS$’000

310,800 586,250 155,400 581,250
8,563 15,967 - -
319,363 602,217 155,400 581,250
60,301 — — —
309,868 125,919 - -
689,532 728,136 155,400 581,250
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=—+= RH&®E 22 LONG TERM LIABILITIES

L AL

The Group The Company
—RANE = INE —AANREFE —ARANF

ARAFNEEZ

Unsecured bank loans

BET T

1999
HKS’000

BEET T

1998
HKS’000

BT I BT T
1999 1998
HKS’000 HKS’000

EIEHIRITER repayable within 5 years 3,069,150 3,954,500 2,292,150 3,642,500
BWERAFHNEH Unsecured bank loans not
183 7 AR wholly repayable within
WITEE 5 years — 130,000 = —
BARIOFRNEEZ Other unsecured loans
A IR R repayable within 5 years 1,359,750 1,356,250 = -
ARAFNEE Obligations under finance
Z AT leases repayable within
5 years 42,479 53,283 - -
WEARAFAER Obligations under finance
EEIZBME leases not wholly
A #HE repayable within 5 years 11,033 — - -
4,482,412 5,494,038 2,292,150 3,642,500
—FAEIHALIA Current portion included in
BB EZ# current liabilities (319,363) (602,217) (155,400) (581,250)
4,163,049 4,891,821 2,136,750 3,061,250
RHBEMNILIF The non-current portion of
—F AN EFEA long term liabilities are
Btrm b repayable as follows:
RITER Bank loans
—FLEEMEA After 1 year, but within
2 years 2,447,550 930,000 2,136,750 930,000
MEUNEE2AFA After 2 years, but within
5 years 310,800 2,477,250 — 2,131,250
hF#& After 5 years — 91,000 - -
E B Other loans
MELEERFA After 2 years, but within
5 years 1,359,750 1,356,250 - -
b B A A AR Obligations under finance
leases
—FUEEMFA After 1 year, but within
2 years 9,091 10,444 - -
MEAEERFA After 2 years, but within
5 years 24,825 26,877 - -
AF#& After 5 years 11,033 - - -
4,163,049 4,891,821 2,136,750 3,061,250




66 FEHMAIZEAMRAT CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED

RHEE @

RIRAS S B/ R T OB 2 IR R R
TERZ BB - R AR
() HIRDE (| EEEE ) REED
BAEBBEARAANRD 30, TREN
KIS B A D AR — B AREFH (b
WAEEREAENBARMERSA
BMERS) o

IEFERL IR

FTEHEMERESHBEMLEEDY R
ZEEBNMEXBETEHRIBEZEZD
Qu N

R—H—H
Yehg, (HE) B AT

TEEEB
R+=H=+—H

HEHRAEMBERENBEB BT
BEMIEEE, (BE) ZBEH b

EXEaNENERBE

EEXEWMARTHIPEBE
EXBHMFNE

EEREVENEEZARERRBE
PR - RS R REA LR IE M
FILABAERE A R & ERE R IR
EERELEMBBEE -

22

23

LONG TERM LIABILITIES (continued)

Under the terms of the agreements of the Group’s unsecured bank
loans repayable within 5 years, China Resources (Holdings) Company
Limited (“CRH”), a holding company, is required to remain as a
beneficiary owner of at least 35% of the voting shares of the Company
and/or remain as a single largest shareholder (whether directly or

indirectly through its subsidiaries) of the Company.

DEFERRED TAXATION

—ARARF
BT T

—ARANEFE
BT T

1999 1998

HKS’000 HKS’000
The movements in deferred taxation,

arising from accelerated

depreciation allowances and profit

on pre-sale of properties under

development, are as follows:

At 1st January 16,811 69,896
Relating to subsidiaries acquired/

(disposed of) 1,712 (52,120)
Provision for the year 974 (965)
At 315t December 19,497 16,811
At the balance sheet date, the potential

deferred taxation assets/(liabilities)

which have not been provided for in

the financial statements are as follows:

Arising from accelerated

depreciation allowances (4,139) (2,199)
Arising from unrelieved tax losses 67,244 24,459
Arising from other timing differences 940 560

Provision for deferred taxation in respect of surpluses arising on
revaluation of investment properties is not required because such
surpluses do not constitute a timing difference for deferred tax
purposes and realisation of the surpluses would not give rise to any

tax liability.
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24 SHARE CAPITAL

—RAANEF —AANF
I 3 2 H %?g I 7 B H %?g
Number of Nominal Number of Nominal
Shares value shares value
T K BETT Tk BETT
’000 HKS’000 ’000 HKS’ 000
ETE Authorised
B EEE®,T Ordinary shares of HK$1 each 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000
i

B BT BB AR Issued and fully paid
R—A—H At 1st January 1,732,548 1,732,548 1,552,761 1,552,761
e & W 17 Placement of shares 250,094 250,094 179,000 179,000
(e Conversion of bonds = - 103 103
1T e 4 Exercise of share options 1,092 1,092 684 684
Rt+t=-—H=+—H At 315t December 1,983,734 1,983,734 1,732,548 1,732,548

() BRB-NANANFEARNHITLZ (@)  Pursuant to the Placing and Subscription Agreements dated 6th
B MR - A RRIREMN July 1999, the Company issued 137,094,000 ordinary shares with
EER M13.8577'3 A5 5 Mg IR an aggregate nominal value of HK$137,094,000 at the price of
AEREAT 137,094,0001& HEM HK$13.85 per share to professional and institutional investors.
REEESS 137,094,ooof5 o & The price represents a discount of approximately 10.36% to the
BER—ANANAFELHATBHBGR closing price of HK$15.45 per share as quoted on the Stock

B S PT B MR T BB 45 4570 IT Exchange on sth July 1999. Such placement was made in order

EE) 10.36% ° ETRERR [ & to broaden the shareholder base and the capital base of the
AARRAZWRIE & EM 7 Company. The net proceeds of approximately HK$1,865,636,000
15 SRR B HKI B ¥ 1,865,636,000 were partly used to finance the purchase of the retail business
TLED Y AR ST 2 AR B s A and its related properties from CRH and partly for the expansion
TEXRBMEHEEDE - H78] of the brewery operations of the Company through new
HEFTUREE RN B IETE - #E UL IR acquisition and internal expansion and for additional working
AARRAEZEHER - LKRHF capital of the Company.
AR ZBINESE °

(L) BEBE—NANFINA/NHETZZ (b)  Pursuant to an agreement dated 8th September 1999, the

W& ARAREBEKREERE
12.037C | & M » ® #F 17
113,000,000 FTHL + 48 H{E3E 7
" 113,000,0007C ' TEA T EX
B — () it TE X
Wi B R Z B HE
ETESBAER 5 o3 LB BEE
EE H RO RE R BT
B 12,05 7THTEH1.8% °

Company issued 113,000,000 new shares with an aggregate
nominal value of HK$113,000,000 to a holding company at the
price of HK$12.03 per share as part of the consideration paid for
the acquisition of the retail business and the related properties
as mentioned in note 24(a) above. The issue price of HK$12.03
represents a discount of approximately 1.8% to the closing price
of HK$12.25 per share as quoted on the Stock Exchange at the

date of signing of the agreement.
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24

(A) RIEA R AIBIER S - AR FA

EFERERSHDBRIESY T
ZEBHREHAIBEEBRETF

MAT o FEHLAE - X

2 = L

]

BEHERIN - BIREEZSFB

Rt an o

fid=l=pt
Date of grant

11/05/1996
17/11/1997
07/12/1998
13/10/1999
mEt

Total

TEE

B

Exercise price
HKS

3.856
14.300
8.980
8.480

R—hAnE
—R—RAZ
B ERH

Number of

share options

at 01.01.1999

SHARE CAP'TAL (continued)

(0 Pursuant to the Company’s Share Option Scheme, the directors

of the Company were authorised to grant at a price of HK$1 per

grant which are exercisable during the period of ten years from

the grant date unless otherwises specified in the terms of grant.

Details of the movement of the share options were summarised

as follows:

FREHZ
B ERE
Number of
share options
granted during
the year

FRITEZ
BIxEHE
Number of

share options

FAREHEZ

R—hAAA%E

BREHE +T—H=1+—H

Number of

share options

exercised during cancelled during

the year

the year

Z B IR
Number of
share options

at 31.12.1999

12,756,000 — (1,092,000) — 11,664,000
8,000,000 — — (2,700,000) 5,300,000
4,910,000 - - - 4,910,000

— 1,850,000 — — 1,850,000

25,666,000 1,850,000 (1,092,000) (2,700,000) 23,724,000
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— 25 RESERVES

rEHE
R=AANF—HA—H
BT R E

BIWMEA

BB
WREELECEE
BRI 6 B i 8 7 AR B
JEERE S DAl 2 i

HCER T A

R=ANNE—A—H
BITHMRE

EORNEM

BB

WEAREES
LiEEFE

BIHENE LA
KB DR RE

LS NA 2 #E

PCER TR £

The Group

At 1st January 1998

Premium on shares
issued

Share issue expenses

Exchange rate
adjustments

Revaluation deficit

Goodwill on acquisition

Release due to disposal
of subsidiaries

Share of reserves of
associates

Profit attributable to
shareholders

Dividends

Transfer

At 1st January 1999

Premium on shares
issued

Share issue expenses

Exchange rate
adjustments

Revaluation deficit

Net reserve on
acquisition

Release due to disposal
of subsidiaries &
associates

Share of reserves of
associates

Profit attributable to
shareholders

Dividends

Transfer

At 315t December 1999

R EE

Share

premium
BRI
HKS’000

5,712,236

991,736
(34)

Capital
reserve
BET T
HKS’000

(1,832,329)

(1,315)

MEMLE
ftfE
Property
valuation

reserve
BET T
HKS’000

355,576
(199,456)

(8,307)

(16,722)

B 1R
Exchange

reserve
BETT
HKS’000

—RER

General

reserve
BETT
HKS’000

51,453

(564) -

1,003 -

- 6,228

RE &R
Retained k]
profits Total
BETT B¥Tx
HKS’000  HKS’000

1,273,057 7,394,305

- 991,736
- (34)

- 17,772
= (199,456)
- (1,832,329)
- (10,186)
- (15,719)
1,268,428 1,268,428

(249.177)  (249,177)
(6,228) -

6,703,938

3,011,167
(37,327)

(1,833,644)

675,865

10,518

807

131,091

57,681

- 3,156

2,286,080 7,365,340

3,011,167
(37,327)

- 1,253
(108,396)

- 675,865

- 10,512
- (10,007)
1,442,839 1,442,839

(290,863)  (290,863)
(3,156) -

9,677,778

(1,146,454)

11,683

21,639 60,837

3:434,900 12,060,383
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—t+i f#fE w 25  RESERVES (continued)

MR MEE
A
BERE BEXHEE  poperty ERRHE —RERE REEA

Share Capital  valuation  Exchange General  Retained #R
premium reserve reserve reserve  reserve profits Total
BETT BERTrT BETr BETr BETT BETT BETD
HKS’000  HKS$’000 HK$’000  HKS$’000  HKS$’000  HKS’000  HKS’000

VAN The Company
R=ANNF—H—H At 15t January 1998 5,712,236 - 112,471 - = 84560 5,909,267
BT 0 B Premium on shares

issued 991,736 - - - - - 99736
BIIRHEM Share issue expenses (4) - - - - - (34)
BB Revaluation deficit - - (44,000) - - - (44,000)
Mt B £ Profit attributable to

shareholders - - - - = 444,683 444,683
B E Dividends - - - - - (9.177)  (249177)
R=ANANF—HA—H At 15t January 1999 6,703,938 - 68,471 - — 280,066 7,052,475
BT 0 B Premium on shares

issued 3,011,167 - - - — — 3,011,167
BIIRHEM Share issue expenses (37,327) - - - - - (7327)
EMEY Revaluation deficit - - (28,370) - - - (28,370)
HOR B 1 i Profit attributable to

shareholders - - - - - 153320 153,320
B Dividends - - - - —  (290,863) (290,863)
R—AANEF At31st December1999 9,677,778 - 40,101 - — 142,523 9,860,402

TZA=t+—H

(H) —RiFEHE/MEERZED
B B P 3 B e M T R statutory surplus reserve, statutory public welfare fund and

B

(@  General reserve is part of shareholders’ funds and comprises

ZIEEBBER  EAER@mEMN discretionary surplus reserve of subsidiaries and associates in
ERHABRER ° the Chinese Mainland.

(L) AEERBRNAEBREARSE (b)  The retained profits of the Group include HK$323,992,000
EBERrMEREZEN (1998: HK$551,417,000) retained by associates of the Group.

323,992,0007C (T ILILJVE 3B
" 551,417,00070) °

(M) AABIAEDIR TR Z HER (©  Reserves of the Company available for distribution to

ol 142,523,0007T (=N shareholders amounted to HK$142,523,000 (1998:
F  %B% 280,066,0007C) ° HK$280,066,000).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Reconciliation of profit before taxation to net cash

inflow from operating activities

Profit before taxation

Share of results of associates

Profit from disposal of other investments

Profit from disposal of a subsidiary

Profit on deemed disposal of a subsidiary

Loss on deemed disposal of
shareholdings in a subsidiary

Profit on deemed disposal of an associate

Dividend income

Interest income

Interest expenses

Loss on disposal of fixed assets

Amortisation of intangible assets

Depreciation

Changes in stock of properties

Changes in other stocks

Changes in other investments

Changes in debtors, deposits and prepayments

Changes in stakeholder accounts
Changes in trade and other payables
Changes in amount due to immediate holding company

Effect of foreign exchange rate adjustments

Net cash inflow from operating activities

26 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

—AhNEF
BET T

1999
HKS’000

PR R 71

—ANNE
BT T
1998
HKS’000

2,591,812 2,118,168
(490,493) (441,402)
= (214)
(1,992) -
— (270,015)

1,537 -
(1,300) -
(5,228) (2,432)
(398,944) (315,307)
367,223 323,548
22,798 12,807
8,331 9,340
312,424 177,116
1,521,376 (684,748)
(71,268) (6,843)
1,940 270,026
(171,625) (321,033)
(37,786) 278,697
93,695 340,179
(6,260) (4,337)

= 419
3,736,240 1,483,969
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26 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (continued)

—NANEF
BET T

1999
HKS’000

B Disposal of subsidiaries

Net assets disposed of

— L ANE
BT T
1998
HKS’000

Fixed assets - 275,343
Intangible assets — 24,529
Interest in associates = 800,026
Amounts due from associates — 168,754
Other investments = 67,533
Stock of properties = 2,557,683
Other stocks — 28,955
Short term investments = 7,655
Debtors, deposits and prepayments 4 1,750,382
Cash and bank balances 2,378 774,129
Trade and other payables (1,278) (376,384)
Taxation = (167,694)
Short term loans — (1,048,058)
Long term loans — (1,351,039)
Deferred taxation (4) (59,745)
Minority interests (2,019) (2,234,268)
Reserves released (1,073) (10,186)
Profit on disposal of subsidiaries 1,992 270,015
- 1,477,630

Interest retained in associates = 1,477,630

Analysis of the net outflow of cash and
cash equivalents in respect of

disposal of subsidiaries

Cash and bank balances (2,378)

(774,129)
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26 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (continued)

—RARANFE —RAANEF
EBEET T
1999 1998
HKS’000 HKS’000

BT T

A WEHEBLA C Acquisition of subsidiaries
WEMEEERE Net assets acquired
Bl & E Fixed assets 3,803,917 1,613,057
mEE Intangible assets 832 32,909
R & RNA 2w Interest in associates = 63,126
H AR E Other investments - 9,438
MEFE Stock of properties 27,070 -
HEiFE Other stocks 346,451 527,033
FEUWHRTR ~ B N TET I8 Debtors, deposits and prepayments 64,751 727,319
AR BB Tax recoverable 1,532 563
W MIRITHET Cash and bank balances 31,648 2,120,114
B 5 M E A IR Trade and other payables (668,396) (1,199,602)
HHEE R Short term loans = (49,872)
I Taxation (1,968) (15,582)
FE A~ $2E W X B FRIE Amount due to a holding company 29,303 (99,769)
RHEER Long term loans = (1,041,614)
BRI Deferred taxation (1,716) (7,625)
BB M 2 Minority interests (14,244) (1,424,386)
WekE (rag) m B (Discount)/Premium on acquisition (762,497) 1,713,887
2,856,683 2,968,996
W AT ARE Z Less: Interest in respect of the company
previously acquired — (943,104)
2,856,683 2,025,892
LA N3 77 332+ Satisfied by
RE Cash 817,293 857,380
B B 19 Shares allotted 1,359,390 1,168,512
FEAHIZE M S B FRI8 Amount due to a holding company 680,000 —
2,856,683 2,025,892
WRBHBARERB RS Analysis of the net (outflow)/inflow of
FEREEERE) RA cash and cash equivalents in respect
RE DA of the acquisition of subsidiaries
HeE Cash consideration (817,293) (857,380)
B AT IR S & MIRTTHE 17 Cash and bank balances acquired 31,648 2,120,114
(785,645) 1,262,734
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—t+N ZERESREXRME @ 26 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (continued)

TR 28 REREE
Hitt B RRER Share
Bank and Minority capital &
other loans interests premium
BET T BET T BET T
HKS’ 000 HKS’000 HKS 000
T FRABEZDIN D Analysis of changes in financing
during the year

R=AANF—H—H At 1st January 1998 5,843,489 4,310,521 7,264,997
MEZHERARE Net cash inflow from financing 1,071,643 307,948 2,590
5 it g 2 Disposal of subsidiaries (2,399,097)  (2,236,003) -
R BBt 8 2 Al Acquisition of subsidiaries 1,091,486 1,424,386 1,168,512
[EE:d e Conversion of bonds (387) - 387
D BHRIE AR 4 7 Minority interests’ share of profits - 560,724 -

S DEioE - WNE] Dividends paid to minority
DB IBLE shareholders of subsidiaries - (16,000) -
HEAE Exchange adjustments 10,985 5,995 -
R—AANF—A—H At 1st January 1999 5,618,119 4,357,571 8,436,486
BECHERA/ (RH) FE Net cash inflow/ (outflow) from financing (794,232) 167,182 1,865,636
MEMEAERS Inception of obligations under finance leases 25,519 - -
YR BRIt 8 2 A Acquisition of subsidiaries - 14,244 1,359,390
BAMBLARIMEER Purchase of additional interest in subsidiaries - (160,658) -
B E R R RE Decrease in shareholdings of subsidiaries - (7.:122) -
D BHRIE AR 4 7 Minority interests’ share of profits - 873,267 -
ERPBEBERE Dividends paid to minority shareholders - (1,342,447) -
MR AE Exchange adjustments - 3,455 -

R—AANFE+Z_HA=+—H At 315t December 1999 4,849,406 3,905,492 11,661,512
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—t+t EXRAE 27 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

ot B

The Group The Company
—RANF —ARNF —ARANF —RRANF

BT T BT T BETTT BT T

1999 1998 1999 1998
HKS’000 HKS’000 HKS’000 HKS’000

CENERMRBERBZ Contracted for but not

provided for

BRBYEZE Expenditure in respect of
properties under
development 852,512 291,000 - -
EAMBEAREIA Capital contribution
ZENR in investee companies 250,123 24,887 - -
BAKREEETERE Purchase and construction
of fixed assets 140,692 73,479 - -
1,243,327 389,366 - -
EREEBRAKRENZ Authorised but not

contracted for

BRBYEZE Expenditure in respect of

properties under

development — 1,200,000 — —
Mg nrlZRE Investment in a subsidiary 140 - — -
BAMARZEEAE Purchase and construction

of fixed assets 278,394 147,297 - -

1,521,861 1,736,663 - -
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Z+N SRERE 28 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

7 £ |4 RN
The Group The Company

— A NE — N ANE —NANE —NANF

BET T BT T BT T BEET T

1999 1998 1999 1998

HKS’000 HKS’000 HKS’000 HKS$’000
B MNIRTREZ Guarantees in respect of
RIT R EA banks and other loans

HRER provided to
Fit = 2 =l Subsidiaries — - 1,359,750 1,356,250
B & A A Associates 90,000 90,000 Jofueg 90,000

90,000 90,000 1,449,750 1,446,250

=t EXMEWEME 29 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

7 £E | KA
The Group The Company
—NANF —RAI\EF —AARE —RAANF
BT T BT T BT T BT T
1999 1998 1999 1998
HKS’000 HKS’000 HKS’000 HKS’000
AR —F NS Amounts payable within one
B T year for leases of land
HERED and buildings
=& F N ER Expiring in the first year 68,784 21,633 3,284 -
EXTFEFELF Expiring in the second to
7 JiE fifth years inclusive 115,464 97,469 — 3,636
ERRFZEER Expiring after the fifth year 27,029 19,763 — -
211,277 138,865 3,284 3,636
AR —FABN Amounts payable within one
EEMENREZ year for leases of vessels
REm b
TEEFHNER Expiring in the first year = 736 - -
EE_FE2FRF Expiring in the second to
A JE fifth years inclusive 746 1,023 — —
746 1,759 - -

212,023 140,624 3,284 3,636
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

On 28th June 1999, the Group awarded a construction contract
of approximately HK$1,048 million to China Resources
Construction Company Limited, a 99.6% owned subsidiary of
CRH, by way of tendering. The outstanding contract sum as at

31st December 1999 is approximately HK$954 million.

On 12th August 1999, the Group entered into a Share Sale and
Purchase Agreement to acquire 20% remaining interest in
Redland Holdings Limited (“Redland”) from China Resources
Metals & Minerals Co., Ltd., a wholly owned subsidiary of CRH,
for a cash consideration of HK$168 million. The consideration
was arrived at after taking into account the financial
performance of Redland and the price earnings ratio of a
comparable company at the time of acquisition. The transaction

was completed on 17th August 1999.

On 8th September 1999, the Company entered into an
acquisition agreement with CRH in relation to the acquisition by
the Company of CRH’s entire interest in Fresh Concepts
International Limited (“FCI”) for a consideration of approximately
HK$2,087.3 million. The consideration represents a discount of
approximately 26.9% to the unaudited pro forma net tangible
asset value of the FCl as at 30th June 1999. An outstanding sum
of approximately HK$680 million is payable on or before 31st

March 2000.

Concurrently, the Group also entered into an agreement in
relation to the acquisition of CRH’s entire interest, rights and
titles in the debt owed by FCl and its subsidiaries to CRH for a

consideration of HK$632.7 million.
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=t BEEXZ w 30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

] R—NANNAFENLA+LEH B

& 8 188 % 117 600,00070 K FE
EHRATEERAT (288
)8 N2 o0l i - AN
BT R B B 2 B 0 5
RE EHBTRAAETLE
BHIE AT - BRREIETH
EFRERBARINER 2T E
BEE - ZERAHR—ANAE
+—HABRM -

X TR ARHTHEBEREEALE
TETRS - WERDIFBLK
BRaten

R M B (k)
HETHEALR
HESMZENRZ
RAEBEITZR S ¢
— REHRE (Mt ikg)
— EHEBRS (itg)
— HEERAE AR (FHrtg)
AR EREHE
RRHEIRALT ()
RERDHLAE (k)
M o)A B IR E BT AR S
—A2TRE (KA
RE B E R RIA)
— S REIREHTERE

On 17th September 1999, Ng Fung Hong Limited (“NFH”), a
subsidiary, entered into an agreement with CRH to acquire the
remaining 40% equity interest in China Resources Supermarket
(Hong Kong) Limited (“CRS”) and the loan due by CRS to CRH for
a total cash consideration of HK$117.6 million. Upon completion,
CRS becomes a wholly owned subsidiary of NFH. The
consideration was arrived at between the parties with reference
to the market value of similar companies and business. The

transaction was completed on gth November 1999.

During the year, the Group conducted certain transactions with
related parties. Details of these transactions are summarised as

follows:

—AANEF —ARANEFE
BT T BT T

1999 1998
HKS’000 HKS’000

Redland and subsidiaries (note 1)
Transactions with companies of which certain
related parties are directors and

controlling shareholders:

— Purchase of raw materials (note 8) 122,325 242,350
— Usage of transportation service (note 8) — 10,315
— Lease of concrete batching sites (note 8) — 5,008
Sales of concrete to a fellow subsidiary (note 7) 36,790 25,875
PS & STCS (notes 2 & 7)

Provision for godown and storage service to
— NFH group (prior to becoming a subsidiary

of the Group) — 11,605
— Fellow subsidiaries 525 2,996
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

NFH and subsidiaries
Sales of foodstuffs to
— CNFC (notes 3 & 7)
— CRS (note 4)

Purchases of foodstuffs from (note 8)
— Designated suppliers (note 5)
— Quota products
— Non-quota products
— Fellow subsidiaries
— CNFC (note 9)

Net purchases of fishing supplies, equipment &

vessels from CNFC (notes 9 & 10)

Operating lease payments and air-conditioning

charges to fellow subsidiaries (note 8)

Wages paid to CNFC (note 9)

Interest paid to CNFC (note 11)

Harvest Fair (note 6)
Receiving of construction services from a

fellow subsidiary

FCI and subsidiaries (note 8)
Purchase of towers, bedding accessories and
knitwear from fellow subsidiaries
Operating lease payments and air-conditioning

charges to fellow subsidiaries

—AhNEF
BET T

1999
HKS’000

102,230

20,505

515,831
20,836
5,612
6,892

48,353

12,970

135,128

9,526

380,401

4,761

3,686

MH AW 79

—ANNE
BT T
1998
HKS’000

8,256
2,569

82,122
2,582

738
230

1,451

1,595

11,108

769,586
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Notes:

, Redland is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company prior to 12th
August 1999.

2. Pak Sik Enterprises Limited and Sha Tin Cold Storage Company Limited

(“PS & STCS”) are wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company.

3. CNFC International Fisheries Corp (“CNFC”) is a 49% minority shareholder
of China International Fisheries Corp. (“CIFC”), a subsidiary of NFH.

4. This represents the transactions prior to CRS becoming a wholly-owned
subsidiary of NFH.

5. Designated suppliers are suppliers designated by The Ministry of Foreign
Trade and Economic Co-operation who are substantial shareholders of
non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company.

6. Harvest Fair Investment Limited (“Harvest Fair”) is a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company and the services were carried out in
accordance with the terms of the construction contracts.

7. These sales transactions were entered into in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group with reference to prevailing market prices.

8. These transactions were entered into based on prevailing market prices.

9. These transactions were conducted in accordance with the terms and
conditions as stipulated in the services agreement dated 19th May 1997
entered into between CIFC and CNFC.

10. These purchases, except for the purchases of vessels which were
purchased at their net book value amounts, were made on cost basis.

11. Interest is charged at 7.9% per annum.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The presentation and classification of items in the financial statements
have been changed due to the adoption of the requirements of SSAP 1
(revised) “Presentation of financial statements”, SSAP2 (revised) “Net
profit or loss for the period, fundamental errors and changes in
accounting policies”, SSAP 10 (revised) “Accounting for investments in
associates” and SSAP24 “Accounting for investments in securities”. As
a result, comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with

the current year’s presentation.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements set out on pages 39 to 86 were approved by

the Board of Directors on 26th April 2000.
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RN

R—ANNFSZA=+—H

F 1B 0 B R g
Subsidiaries and

associates

WEXY — BB
Property — Hong Kong

AEBEME L
Incorporated in Hong Kong

BEREFR AR
Harvest Fair Investment
Limited

Redland Consultants

Limited

KENYEERLFR QA
Winland Property
Management Limited

MWEXE — HERM

Property — Chinese Mainland

REASHEEMMA L

Incorporated in Cayman Islands

*

FEEILREM AR AR
China Resources Beijing
Land Limited

*

(G T o B 7 AT 5 2 7

(operating principally in
Chinese Mainland)
EmRERmER

Food and Beverage

REBTM L
Incorporated in Hong Kong

WITAR QA
Ng Fung Hong Limited

B BT RAE A

Issued and fully paid

share capital

81

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND
ASSOCIATES

at 31st December 1999

7 25 [ fE G
attributable to

the Group

DR AR (T R 5

2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each

2 s {7 K T 2 A i 100

2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each

2 s {7 K T 2 A i 100

2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each

1,496,459,428% & B I {8
T W5 0,17T 2 3
1,496,459,428 ordinary
shares of HK$o0.1 each

1,043,480,0008% T B I {8
o T 2 EIBR
1,043,480,000 ordinary
shares of HK$o0.1 each

44

53.6

BAE D

Percentage of capital

ARFER

WEBAREE
held by

subsidiaries

held by the

Company

100
100 -
100 -
o 44
- 53.6

Principal

activities

2 B
Property
development

YR E
Property
investment

¥ 2 B I
Property
management

ERRE
Investment
holding

KR AR o
Distribution of
fresh, live and
frozen foodstuff
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e N

Percentage of capital

MELRNREE DT
Subsidiaries and

associates

RmRKmERE @)

Food and Beverage (continued)

REBEM A 2

Incorporated in Hong Kong

ERBETS (FB)
BRAR]

China Resources
Supermarket (Hong Kong)
Company Limited

AEITRmAKERR LA
Ng Fung Frozen Meats &
Aquatic Products Co.,
Limited

B HZEARRE
Sha Tin Cold Storage
Company Limited

HERERR AR
Pak Sik Enterprises Limited

AR B A 4 S AR 2

Incorporated in Chinese Mainland

EGERS AR A
China Resources

(Shenyang) Snowflake
Brewery Company

Limited

S ERE A AR AR
China Resources
(Mianyang) Brewery
Company Limited

EBRTRBERE
Issued and fully paid

IEICRE I EL

7% 90,000,0007C
HK$90,000,000

7% 5,000,0007T

HK$5,000,000

100/ T IR EE ¥ T 2
L i

100 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

21 55 A (B8 s 17T 2 3 I

2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each

21,514,531K 7C
US$21,514,531

A E ¥ 100,000,0007T

RMB100,000,000

A E ARG
attributable to

the Group

53.6

50.4

100

100

51

NS ESE ]
held by the

Company

100

100

NSRS <)
held by

subsidiaries

100

94

90

100

Principal

activities

BT - K
oE R o
Supermarket
operations,
investment
holding and
wholesale of
merchandise

Trading of

frozen meats and

aquatic products

REt2 B RS
Provision of cold

storage services

RETR X
Operation of

godown business

Y gl P 2
Manufacturing

of beer products

Y gl P 2
Manufacturing of

beer products
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F 1B 0 B R g
Subsidiaries and

associates

BmMRmESE @

Food and Beverage (continued)

R A B A e 5T B 52

Incorporated in Chinese Mainland

AR g B R 2 A
China Resources (Jilin)

Brewery Company Limited

% 5 &5 e U A R 2 Al
Shenyang Snowflake Beer
Company Limited

N g P A5 PR R |
China Resources (Dalian)

Brewery Company Limited

RFBFEREH AR QA
China Resources (Tianjin)

Brewery Company Limtied

RYMEE R KK AR 2 A
Shenzhen C'estbon Food and
Drink Company Limited

M EERmER LT
Xuzhou VV Food & Beverage
Limited

RABELBHEEMA L

B BT RAE A

Issued and fully paid

share capital

11,600,0005% 7T

US$11,600,000

21,514,5315 7T
US$21,514,531

9,600,0003% /L
US$9,600,000

29,500,0003< /L.

US$29,500,000

ANE¥%12,000,00070

RMB12,000,000

23,000,0005< 7T

US$23,000,000

Incorporated in British Virgin Islands

FEHAIZEWAGR QA
CRE Beverage Limited

42,500,0008% & X
H B30 2 &Rl
42,500,000 ordinary

shares of US$1 each

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES FEME AR KB & AR 83

BRAB D
Percentage of capital
AAEFAE WBRAEESR
held by the held by

Company subsidiaries

REMEMSL

attributable to

the Group

45.9 o 90
45.9 o 90
51 — 100
47.2 - 92.50
51 - 100
19.4 — 36
51 51 -

Principal

activities

U5 0P 2
Manufacturing of

beer products

B R 0P 2E
Manufacturing of
beer products

Y ik P 2E o
Manufacturing of

beer products

BUER D

M P 2 h
Manufaturing and
distribution of

brewery products

B3 G K
Manufacturing of

purified water

HESH
Production of

soya milk

ERRE
Investment

holding



84 HEMAIZEAMAW CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED

e N

Percentage of capital

MELRNREE DT
Subsidiaries and

associates

RmRKmERE @)

Food and Beverage (continued)

REASHBEEMM

Incorporated in Cayman Islands

23] 179 N
China International Fisheries

Corp.

BEEkHEMRE

EETESERAS NEEEG

Issued and fully paid attributable to

IEICRE I EL the Group

60,8647<7C 27.3
US$60,864

Infrastructure and Other Investments

REBIEMA

Incorporated in Hong Kong

PR L ARAR

Redland Concrete Limited

EHTE GREDARRA
China Resources Retail
(Group) Ltd

FE(FH) BR2A
Chinese Arts & Crafts
(H.K.) Limited

EFHAERQA
CRC Department Store Limited

10 SR EEE R Tz EER 100

10 ordinary shares of HK$1 each

25 15 L (B8 ¥ 50T 2 B X 100
1,000,000% & Iz I {E 8 # 5070 Z

A% S A ST A B R

2 ordinary share of HK$50 each &

1,000,000 non-voting deferred

shares of HK$50 each

5,000,000 A% £ A% T & 100
7 W 107T 2 B B AR

5,000,000 ordinary shares of

HK$10 each

4,821,177 8% T BUHEIE 98.1
7 1070 Z B I

4,821,177 ordinary shares of

HK$10 each

NSRS <)
held by

subsidiaries

51

100

100

100

98.1

Principal

activities

A
Investment

holding

B R
Manufacturing of

building materials

PR A
Investment

holding

Retail business

Retail business



ox

ox

F 1B 0 B R g
Subsidiaries and

associates

EERAMKRE @

B BT RAE A

Issued and fully paid

share capital

Infrastructure and Other Investments (continued)

R A B A e 5T B 52

Incorporated in Chinese Mainland

REER MR LR B R R A
China Resources (Dalian)
Oil & Fat Chemical Co., Ltd.

EGER = B
BERLQR

China Resources (Shenyang)
Sanyo Compressor Company
Limited

RABELBHEEMA L

AR ™ g4,708,7827C
RMB94,708,782

25,060,000% /T
US$25,060,000

Incorporated in British Virgin Islands

HIT Investments Limited

(EBREBLEER)
(operating principally in

Hong Kong)

Tactical Solutions

Incorporated

Fresh Concepts International
Limited

200 F R MMEFKITZ
3 AR

200 ordinary “A” shares
of US$1 each

100 TR E T 2 & @R
100 ordinary shares of
US$1 each

M BT (42850, 2 3 TR AR
2 ordinary shares of
US$1 each

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

7 25 [ fE G
attributable to

the Group

90

10

51

100

F B E AR KBE AT 85

BRAB D
Percentage of capital
AAEFAE WBRAEESR
held by the held by

Company subsidiaries

Principal

activities

— g0 HEBES
Manufacturing of

chemical products

— BUEERAEE
Manufacturing

of compressors

10 BEGEGS
BE
Investment in
container terminal

operations

- 51 EBRKRE
Investment

holding

— ERERA

Investment

100

holding
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RAB D
Percentage of capital

il NCIDEE: - N B BT RAUR B A AEEEML FA2FEFEF HEBREERE FEXEK

Subsidiaries and Issued and fully paid attributable to held by the held by Principal

associates IEICRE I EL the Group Company subsidiaries activities

EERHMERE @)

Infrastructure and Other Investments (continued)

REASHBEEMM

Incorporated in Cayman Islands

** Lippo CRE Financial Services 50,000 8% & B I {H 13 7T 2 50 50 — A
Limited A Investment
50,000 ordinary shares holding
of US$1 each
MRERESTMAL

Incorporated in Bermuda

* BEEEREEARAR 587,182,261 & X HI B 39.0 — 39.0 MAEHRHR

* |ogic International ¥ 0.107C Z B ML Z 70 §H Ko B
Holdings Limited 587,182,261 ordinary Distribution and
(EERB B EET shares of HK$0.1 each manufacturing of
(operating principally in office furniture
Hong Kong)

B 3T

Notes:

=< EFRAR TEFIMAMBLABEAFEEEREAR LR M EREHIIHAEMEGEKEERLBTRFE N Z B R a) L &2 a5 o
1. The Directors are of the option that a complete list of the particulars of all subsidiaries and associates will be of excessive length and therefore the above list contains only the
particulars of the subsidiaries and associates which materially affect the results or assets of the Group.

= BaAEWERN 0 FA6z E RS A E B S I8 A A GRSz BT AR o

2. Unless otherwise stated, the principal country of operation of each company is the same as its place of incorporation.
* T s X A

& Associates

# FERTEHALRZBERAZEERDGHEMTERERNTE ) -

o Significant influence is exercised through the participation of regular board meeting of the associates.

. IR E) e BB Gl RTERZZ AT o

Companies not audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.
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TEYEBE SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

R-—ANNF+—A=+—H at 31st December, 1999

REE  EHEE
s CEBK)

R Group’s Floor Area ; HHOEH

Location Interest (sq.m.) Lease Term

- KIEREYXR

A. Properties held for investment

7B
Hong Kong

FEEIR O N IR BEAL

VBB & /B KB ggg TR #T LHE M B 55 409R 100% 2,771 f HHEIEE
Car park on G/F, 1/F and 2/F of CRE Centre cP Medium lease
889 Cheung Sha Wan Road

Kowloon

ot

NKIL 5540

ZER RO EAL p1-pio3, L1-L7,
Lg-L15, L17-L20, L23-L35
R AR AE 740

S HI 1D 4503 HLER o35 160% oo T

ot

Car park P1-P103, L1-L7, CP Medium lease
Lg-L15, L17-L20, L23-L35,

Riley House Nos. 74-90

Lei Muk Road, Kwai Chung

New Territories

Lot No. 937 DD450

FalANE

HEETHIEFFE303R

PRI BR 652450 < BR BR b

M ER 70045 & 7008k Z BRER 100% 7,451 & =HHEE
CRE Building c/o Long lease
303 Hennessy Road

Wanchai, Hong Kong

IL6524 R.P. &

IL7004-7008 R.P.
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rE
Pl RE 2R

wE Group’s

Location Interest

o BEREWE @

A. Properties held for investment (continued)

"B
Hong Kong

8RB R B IZ 541 M 3001~ 11 %

HERENEEHIR

PRI ER 14457 100%
8 Commercial Tower

24/F & Room 3001-11

8 Sun Yip Street

Chai Wan, Hong Kong

Lot No. 144

TR HERIE 505

AL 3R A

11 395k &8 Mo 18 41 T E 100%
Shop No. 38 on the Ground Floor

Shop No. 39 on 1st Floor and

Shop No. 41 on 2nd Floor

Silvercord

30 Canton Road

Tsimshatsui

Kowloon

TR HERIE 505

ABROE L JE 01T j10R B TE

sE o3 B FTIE M0l en R FTEM
ffﬂ@g, 14, 15, 16&17%$@ 100%
Office Nos. 401 to 410 on 4th Floor

Office No. 503 on 5th Floor and

Office Nos. 610 and 611 on 6th Floor

Tower 1 and Car Parking Space

Nos. 13, 14, 15, 16 and 17 on Basement
Silvercord

30 Canton Road

Tsimshatsui

Kowloon

EHER
(75 K)
Floor Area

(sq.m.)

2,631

6,293

1,958

g
c/o

[P
C/CP

HHOFH

Lease Term

HHHEE

Medium lease

=HHEE

Long lease

=HEMEE

Long lease
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REE  EHEE
s CEBK)

R Group’s Floor Area ; HHOEH

Location Interest (sq.m.) Lease Term

o BEREWE @

A. Properties held for investment (continued)

7B
Hong Kong

NEBEREE T

YR LB, gMgtE TH M

HE | 39, Lgo, Lygs, La6, L4z M L4885 B BT 100% 9,702 I /= KHEMEE
Workshop on 7th, 8th and gth Floors of Block B and I/CP Long lease
Lorry Parking Space Nos. L39, L4o0, L45, L46, L47 and

L48 on Basement

Yau Tong Industrial City

17 Ko Fai Road

Yau Tong

Kowloon

A ZET LRI 26, 298 P AR g, — 98Tt
mEs L 1§A034-Ao41 " A4201 " A4301 " Aogy
A45022 Ag602 AL M BT A7 4% [H

JERGIER - JEMRMEE CEYFAE)
KGERATER IR A A RATER Z = H

&iﬂ§31&57?EE$1E 98.050/0 6,832 ?;ﬁ/1$ EEWHE
Units Ao34-A041, A4201, A4301, Ao44, A4502 and c/cp Long lease

A4602 and portion on 1st Floor, portion of 2nd Floor
portion of 3rd Floor with Flat Roof

and the space between the floor ceiling

and the original concrete ceiling over portion of

3rd Floor and lorry parking space Nos 31 and 57

on Basement

Nan Fung Centre

264—298 Castle Peak Road

64—98 Sai Lau Kok Road

Tsuen Wan

New Territories
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rE EHES
Pl RE 2R (¥ 75 3K)

wE Group’s Floor Area

Location Interest (sq.m.)

- BEREYE @

A. Properties held for investment (continued)

5B
Hong Kong

&SRR IR AT 19— 3,3 MR, — g%
BRI O N~ 189 20A " 208X 20CTHR #E L
termE AL (pDAD)EHAA(BAR) -

1 MGERE N EBEEY S 98.05% 8,982
Shop Nos. 5-18, 20A, 20B and 20C on Ground Floor,
Entrance at Yee Wo Street (Entrance A)

Entrance at Sugar Street (Entrance B)

the whole of 1st, 2nd and 3rd Floors

and the whole Flat Roof on 4th Floor Level

Lok Sing Centre

19-31 Yee Wo Street and 2-8 Sugar Street
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

JURE AL /A R B8 688k

REEH¢ R AR L —HE 98.05% 1,486
sth Floor

Argyle Centre, Phase |

688 Nathan Road

65 Argyle Street

Mongkok

Kowloon

522 O0R 3 K B gg ik

EMPLDEEE MM MEE g R ELL 100% 4,008

Godown on 6th Floor

and Car Parking Space No. L8 on Lower Ground Floor
Riley House

88 Lei Muk Road

Kwai Chung

New Territiories

I 1=
I/CP

HHOFH

Lease Term

=HEMEE

Long lease

=HEMEE

Long lease

=HHEE

Long lease
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REE  EHEE
s CEBK)

R Group’s Floor Area ; HHOEH

Location Interest (sq.m.) Lease Term

e BEREWE @
A. Properties held for investment (continued)

'E
Hong Kong

ST 2V B I gtk

RO gIE ) REN 100% 141 T KHHEE
Unit 14 on 3rd Floor | Long lease

Sun Fung Centre
88 Kwok Shui Road
Tsuen Wan

New Territories

NEEBREBAB R T ERNE 100% 13,900 T KHHEE
CAC Tower | Long lease
165 Hoi Bun Road

Kwun Tong

Kowloon

B 49 b B2
REE HE ZHHEE

oz (FK) (T3 K) 1457 A% H 73
(A= Group’s Approx. Site  Floor Area FE BRI 7 Estimate Date
Location Interest Area (sq.m.) (sq.m.) State of Completion of Completion
-~ BEPYRE
B. Properties under development
B
Hong Kong

R

B RAEM T KT HEER 15957
Villa Esplanada

Nga Ying Chau

Tsing Yi Town, New Territories

TYTL 129

F=H 55% 11,200 80,023 15/1$ TETERREZS —FTE—F/)\H
Phase Il R/CP Superstructure in progess August 2001

Bzt - =¥ E={E=® fF=t= 5 =R = T-T¥

Note: C=Commercial R=Residential CP=Car Park 0=0ffice I=Industrial
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IFUBEERRE

Mt BR A U )

s B

clt

REERB R

BRETAF

& & =
EIEEE
BB EFE
BEeEH

Jse AR
T 1E
B =

DB R E s
=HEAEE
IR
EEHES

Consolidated profit and
loss account

Turnover

Profit attributable to
shareholders

Dividends

Profit for the year retained

Basic earnings per share

Dividends per share

Consolidated balance sheet

Fixed assets
Intangible assets
Long term investments

Net current assets

Employment of capital

Share capital

Reserves

Shareholders’ funds

Minority interests
Long term liabilities

Deferred taxation

Capital employed

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

—AAEFE —ARAANFE —ANEF —AANFE —AARF
BT T

1995
HKS’000

BT T
1996
HKS’000

BT T
1997
HKS’000

BT T
1998
HKS’000

BT T
1999
HKS’000

1,605,061 1,961,888 5,966,361 5,475,100 12,902,299
284,926 596,669 1,560,122 1,268,428 1,442,839
(91,414)  (160,060)  (310,709)  (249,177)  (290,863)
193,512 436,609 1,249,413 1,019,251 1,151,976
HK$0.26 HK$o0.49 HK$1.03 HK$0.81 HK$0.79
HK$0.08 HK$0.11 HK$0.20 HK$o0.15 HK$o0.15
1,955,797 2,323,260 2,719,314 4,227,054 8,000,054
93,768 127,843 123,093 140,788 133,734
1,687,364 5,826,738 7,784,138 7,885,274 7,628,118
5,915,368 7,066,635 7,537,171 6,110,975 6,370,249
9,652,297 15,344,476 18,163,716 18,364,091 22,132,155
1,170,237 1,495,798 1,552,761 1,732,548 1,983,734
3,285,825 6,118,340 7,394,305 7,365,340 12,060,383
4,456,062 7,614,138 8,947,066 9,097,888 14,044,117
3,408,609 4,515,428 4,310,521 4,357,571 3,905,492
1,774,163 3,176,322 4,836,233 4,891,821 4,163,049
13,463 38,588 69,896 16,811 19,497
9,652,297 15,344,476 18,163,716 18,364,091 22,132,155
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that an Annual General Meeting of the Company

will be held at 5oth Floor, China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road,

Wanchai, Hong Kong on Monday, 19th June, 2000 at 3:00 p.m. for the

following purposes:

1. To receive and consider the audited Financial Statements and the

Reports of the Directors and Auditors for the year ended 31st

December 1999.
2. To declare a final dividend.
3. To re-elect Directors and to fix the remuneration of Directors.
4. To re-appoint Auditors and authorise the Directors to fix their

remuneration.

5. As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass the following

resolution as an ordinary resolution:

“THAT:

(@

(b)

subject to paragraph (b) below, the exercise by the Directors of
the Company during the Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined)
of all the powers of the Company to repurchase shares of HK$1
each in the capital of the Company on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange™) or on any other stock
exchange on which the securities of the Company may be listed
and recognised by the Securities and Futures Commission of
Hong Kong and the Stock Exchange for this purpose, subject to
and in accordance with all applicable laws and the requirements
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange or of any other stock exchange as amended from time
to time, be and is hereby generally and unconditionally

approved;

the aggregate nominal amount of shares of the Company which
the Directors of the Company are authorised to repurchase
pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) above shall not exceed
10% of the aggregate nominal amount of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of this Resolution and the

said approval shall be limited accordingly; and
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(0 BMAREEMET - |HEBR]JIES
RABREBEBEHRES2 NI =&
BFZHBIEZ BIE
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for the purposes of this Resolution, “Relevant Period” means the
period from the passing of this Resolution until whichever is the

earliest of:

@ the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the

Company;

(i) the expiration of the period within which the next annual
general meeting of the Company is required by law to be
held; and

(i)  the date on which the authority set out in this Resolution

is revoked or varied by an ordinary resolution of the

shareholders in general meeting of the Company.”

As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass the following

resolution as an ordinary resolution:

“THAT:

@

(b)

subject to paragraph (c) below and pursuant to Section 57B of
the Companies Ordinance, the exercise by the Directors of the
Company during the Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) of
all the powers of the Company to allot, issue and deal with
additional shares of HK$1 each in the capital of the Company
and to make or grant offers, agreements and options (including
bonds, warrants and debentures convertible into shares of the
Company) which would or might require the exercise of such

power be and is hereby generally and unconditionally approved;

the approval in paragraph (a) above shall authorise the Directors
of the Company during the Relevant Period (as hereinafter
defined) to make or grant offers, agreements and options
(including bonds, warrants and debentures convertible into
shares of the Company) which would or might require the

exercise of such power after the end of the Relevant Period;
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Notice of Annual General Meeting BtHUEsEREEE 9O

the aggregate nominal amount of share capital allotted or
agreed conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted (whether
pursuant to an option or otherwise) and issued by the Directors
of the Company pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) above,
otherwise than (i) a Rights Issue (as hereinafter defined); (i) an
issue of shares under any option scheme or similar arrangement
for the time being adopted for the grant or issue to employees of
the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries of shares or rights to
acquire shares of the Company; (i) an issue of shares upon the
exercise of the subscription or conversion rights under the terms
of any warrants or any securities of the Company which are
convertible into shares of the Company; or (iv) an issue of
shares as scrip dividends pursuant to the Articles of Association
of the Company from time to time, shall not exceed 20% of the
aggregate nominal amount of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of passing this Resolution, and the said

approval shall be limited accordingly; and

for the purpose of this Resolution,

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this

Resolution until whichever is the earliest of:

@ the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the

Company;

(i) the expiration of the period within which the next annual
general meeting of the Company is required by law to be
held; and

(i)  the date on which the authority set out in this Resolution
is revoked or varied by an ordinary resolution of the

shareholders in general meeting of the Company; and

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares open for a period fixed
by the Directors of the Company to the holders of shares of the
Company on the register on a fixed record date in proportion to
their then holdings of such shares as at that date (subject to
such exclusions or other arrangements as the Directors of the
Company may deem necessary or expedient in relation to
fractional entitlements or having regard to any restrictions or
obligations under the laws of, or the requirements of any
recognised regulatory body or any stock exchange in, any

territory outside Hong Kong applicable to the Company).”



o6 HEHMAIZEAMAT CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED

FR¥HFIE  EREITERREER @ HEM
MIPREBERAEBRER ¢

IBBFARARNECBETHMAZIE MR,
IHABRRERARBE  BNAEERAREIR
BERAARBZESHZ BIRRER
FEBEA R R AN 2 B 17 MEARRE 2 2
BB ARBARAAREGEZBEMAZE
CERBRETARAIEZT A - BTN
FEEBINEAD 2 —ARIRE - ERBERG Z
BENMPBEAN LAURERREBB AR
RIZEEITHARERBE L 10%° |

FERRm

1.

NEREEREMRE ERE IR E
ZE—BREZBRAERRELRE  TRRRER
AREAERE - XEZREREERERAN
g

REZEEREFBEAZ BEERL (B
B (A RELABAFEEHZEE -
BN AR BTN g/ B AR A A
ZEHE R - bR T L0
EHAE 908 © HABM

RREER_FZFEFFAA+T=ZH(EHD)
EZTTETFATAH(EH ) (BEM
7(@%&7\])Eﬁﬁ%ﬁfi‘ﬁﬁi@?‘%%ﬂ%‘—% °
%ﬂuﬁk%ﬁﬂi?ﬁ%ﬁ@*Z?ﬁﬁﬂl”g B ASFT
BBRPXMHERBRINE  RZFTEF
ANATZHEH ) MHERAIRE A RT
ZEmBFERREREREFELARAA
HHREBTHEP 11T RETHOIE -

REBELZEBRERZMBIR A LMHRAR
E ?ﬁiﬂ%f?)&%%@%%@ﬁ%ﬁﬁ?‘
BZHHAXM  BERARR - ANANEF
wUFEFE TR

7. As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass the following

resolution as an ordinary resolution:

“THAT subject to the passing of the Resolution Nos. 5 and 6 set out in
the notice convening this meeting, the general mandate granted to the
Directors of the Company to allot, issue and deal with additional shares
pursuant to Resolution No. 6 set out in the notice convening this
meeting be and is hereby extended by the addition thereto of an amount
representing the aggregate nominal amount of shares in the capital of
the Company repurchased by the Company under the authority granted
pursuant to Resolution No. 5 set out in the notice convening this
meeting, provided that such amount of shares so repurchased shall not
exceed 10% of the aggregate nominal amount of the issued share capital

of the Company as at the date of the said Resolution.”

By Order of the Board
Lee Yip Wah, Peter

Secretary

Hong Kong, 26th April 2000

Notes:

1. Any member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to
appoint one or more proxies to attend and, on a poll, vote instead of

him. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

2. To be valid, a form of proxy, together with any power of attorney or
other authority (if any) under which it is signed, or a notarially certified
copy thereof, must be lodged with the registered office of the Company
at Room 3908, China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for
holding the meeting.

3. The register of members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday,
13th June 2000 to Monday, 19th June 2000, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to qualify
for the proposed final dividend, all share transfers, accompanied by the
relevant share certificates, must be lodged with the Company’s
Registrar, Standard Registrars Limited at 5th Floor, Wing On Centre, 111
Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:00

p.m. on Monday, 12th June 2000.

4. An explanatory statement as required by the Rules Governing the

Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in
connection with the proposed repurchase mandate under Resolution
No. 5 above will be dispatched to members together with the 1999
annual report of the Company.



